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2 PETITIONER MCGREW AND EERGUSON 1 TRANSCRIPT OF RECORDED PROCEEDINGS
WITNESSES: PAGE:
3 2
DRAKE, Mariah Direct 13
4 ‘ Cross (Amens) 18 3 THE COURT: I guess our new technology has
Crosa (Stone) 23 '
§ Cross (Rodriguez) 24 4 failed. What can go wrong will. So we've got the
6 KELLEY-BRACE, Brenda Direct 25 § witness on the phone now. And looking around the
Crosa (Amens) 34 8 courtroom, I that we h th h
7 Créss (Rodriguez) 56 o rc: ' see 'a ) ave everyone at was here
Redirsct 69 7 yoesterday, except for Kevin Ferguson. We have Kristin
8 Recross (Amens) 73
Cross (Stone) a0 8 sStone back again today. Correct, counsel? Everybody
9 Recross (Rodriguez)82
10 - 9 else is here.
MOOREHEAD, Lori Direct 86
Voir Dire {Amens}) 90 10 MS. AMENS: Yes, Your Honor.
1 Direct (Coht'd) 94 »
Cross (Amens) 96 1 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Yes, Your Honox.
12 Cross (Rodriguez) 99
1 Recross (Amens) 101 12 THE COURT: All right. This is youxr witness,
" FERGUSON, Vicky Direct 103 13  Ms. Amens, correct?
Cro Amens 150 :
. cross :Rudﬂéu“, 176 14 MS. AMENS: Yes, Your Honor. So I would call
Cross (Cont'd) 234
6 Redirect 243 18 Geri Goddard.
:::;:z:gj‘.::ana, :;: 16 As a preliminary matter, the attorneys have
17 . Recross (amens) 255 17 met, and we've stipulated to Exhibit C, D, and B, which
18 FERGUSON, Donald gi;::t(nmens) gg; 18 is her CV. And then she has done two letters,
19 Cross [Rodriguez) 266 19 basically, interim reports, one dated February 24th.
20 MCGREW, Maria (D:lrect“\ ’ :;3 20° That's Exhibit D. And Exhibit E was a letter dated
ross mens
21 Cross (Rodriguez) 340 21  april 15th, 2020. And those have been sdmitted.
22 °'PETITIONER LUCERO 22 The -~ we've had her testify previously at the
WITNESSES: PAGE:
23 23 gtatus hearing. So we would ask that that be ~--
GODDARD, Geri Direct 192 )
24 Cross (Gerber) 199 24 judiclial notice taken to that testimony, if that's
Cross (Stone) 207 -
25 Cross (Rodriguaz) 208 23 possible.
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1 THE COURT: It's part of the record, so I can 1 effactive and efficient, in terms of being able to see
2 do that. 2 her more frequently. And then COVID happened, so I've
3 MS. AMENS: Okay. 3 actually increased my contact with her 'to almost

4 THE COURT: Counsel, you stipulate to the 4 weekly, FaceTime se.ssions and virtual.sessions.

5 admission of Exhibits C, D, and E? 5 So that's -- even if they're sometimes brief,
6 ‘MR. GERBER: Yes, Your Honor. 6 1I'm able to connect with her a little bit and have her
7 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Yes. 7 stick with me, and just do some brief interactionms.
8 THE COURT: Ms. Stone, do you have any 8 Q Have you been able to develop a rapport with
9 objection to the admission of these exhibigs? 9 Paisley?

10 MS. STONE: No. 10 A  absolutely.

1 TBE COURT: Exhibits C, D, and E are admitted. 11 Q ) Okay. So -- so based on the -- well, what
12 (Exhibits C, D, and B admitted.) 12 were -- originally your object with Paisley?

13 THE COURT: Are you ready to go forward? 13 A Actually, being tacted by the L :, I was
14 MS. RMENS: Yes. 14 told'that all three attorneys, uhm, Maria, the McGraths,
15 THE COURT: Ms. Goddard, will you please stand 15 [sic}, the Luceres, and then Paisley's attorney,

16’ and raise yoxlu: right hand. 16 Michelle Rodriguez, all agreed that Paisley would

17 (Witness sworn.) 17 Dbenofit from some clinical intervention, just with the o
18 THE COURT: Please state and spell your name. 18 number of psychological pressures that she was dealing
19 THE WITNESS: Geri Goddard. G-e-r-i. G-o-d, 19  with. -
20 as in "David,"” D, as in "David," a-r-d, as in David. 20 Q oOkay. And so what has been your clinical
21 THE COURT: A-r-d, correct? 21 assessment of Paisley?
22 THE WITNESS: Yes. 22 A Well, that's a pretty broad spectrum. At first
23 THE COURT: Thank you. 23 when I mot Paisley, she was a very distressed little(
24 Go ahead, Ms. A\mens. 24 one for being, like, only threa-and-a-half. I saw her
25 . 25 as highly distressed, very anxicus, even outwardly

PAGE 191 . PAGE 193
. iy e .

~1 GER1 GODDARD, 1 defiant and noncompliant. Very inaétanﬁve, angry, and-
2 the witness herein, being first duly sworn, testified 2 oemotionally unregulated., So that was the beginning.

3 as follows: 3 And then, you know, since then, you knoew, a

4 4 qjunber of things have changed.

5 DIRECT EXAMINATION 5 So how far can I go on to describe?

6 BY MS. AMENS: 6 Q Well, what has changed? Go for

7 Q Ms. Goddard, in this particular proceeding, 7 (unintelligible).

8 you've been working with Paisley Stome, correct? 8 A  Well, uhm, 50 a few months in to it, until you
9 A Yes. 9 mentioned that first report, I wrote that report based
10. Q How long -- how much time have you spent with 10 on the f£act that onae of the things that Paisley has

11  her? 11 consistently stated to me is that her Nanny, Maria
12 A (Un:l.ntell}.gible) you know what? I'm getting a 12 McGrath, is mean. That's how she descxib;s h.ez. She
13 1ot of (unintelligible). I'm hearing myself echo. 13 atates she doesn't want to go,faed har, she's upset she
14 THE COURT: Are you on a speaker phone? 14 hnas to go feed her. s
15 THE WITNESS: I am. Let me hook up -- 15 And then I wrote that report, and then there
16 THE COURT: Okay. If you take it off speaker 16 was a roquest that Maria be iavolved. Even though,
17 it should work better. 117 again, I want to atate, I was under tha impression that
18 THE WITNESS: Okay. Oh, you're right. Thank 18 all partiaes were invited to -- certainly I continued to
19 you. 19 invite all partias to participate in Paisley's care.
20 THE COURT: Go ahead. 20 S0 I did do FaceTima and virtual meetings
21 THE WITNESS: I started working with Paisley 21 during exchanges where Paisloy was dropped off at
22 1ast November, 2019. And, uhm, started seeing her with 22 vicky's house and then picked up by either grandparent,
23 the -- with Pam and Mr. Lucero about twice a month in 23 uhm, and watched her thera. And then I alsc had same
24 person. And then even prior to COVID starting, decided |24 virtual sessions where Paizley was actually at her
25 that some FaceTime and virtual meetings would be more 25 grandmothor Maria's homa, and watching her and her
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1 other cousins over thera. et 1 which five mo\t;'té ago she would have hat;n absolutaly
2 And over therae, it was actually a little bit 2 incapable o? doing. So that was actually very
3  incongruent with what Paisley was reporting to mae, 3 clinically remarkable.
4 because I didn't see the level of distress that Paisley 4 and I saw Paisloy again -- well, I quass that
5 was verbalizing to me. And so I asaw that I was missing 5 was actually prcbably the last time that I saw her. So
6 something, or that there was a clear, you know, hole of 6 that was, like, two weeks ago. No, it wasn't. Was it
7 information. ' 7 two weeks ago? Again, I don't have my notes right in
8 Bacause Paila'y, like I said, continued to 8 front of ze. 8o, yes, that was my most recent contact
9 verbalize her, uhm, dislike of -~ of Nanny ard how she 9 with Paisléy.
10 would continuae to describe her as a, quotation, mean. 10 Again, I want to emphasize, though, even at
11 That is the word that sha uses about Maria. 11 that time, Paisley reports that Nanny is mean, and she
12 After -- after seeing Paisley with Maria, I 12 does not want to go over there.
13 wrote that second report. And like I said, that was -- 13 So my next virtual meeting with Paisley was
14 that was provided around April. 14 1last weak, and that is when she said that har cousins,
15 Fast forward to, like, the summer, thare was an 15 Braxton, I think, and Bryson, and then thera's one
16 inoident in where I had heen hooked up with a meeting 16 other boy that sha said was being mean to her. Aand it
17 with Paisley, and she had said that she had been bad, I 17 wasn't Nanny, but it was these three boys. And she
18 guess was her word., I don't have the exact report from 18 said Nanny got mad at them and used -- and She said,
19 that time. And Maria had admitted that she had spanked |19 uhbm, Maria whooped them. That was her word this time.
20 paisley. Paisley said it was with a spanking spoon, 20 and she said, she whooped them with the whooping spoon,
21 and that led to a mandated report to DCFS. 21 not a spanking spoon, but a whooping spoon.
22 The one thing that was positive as a result of 22 And I asked Paislay, I said, Did you get
23 that report to DCFS, not that I was expecting some 23 spanked, too? And she said, No. So the concern I had
24 grand intervention for, you know, Paisley on why the 24 about that is that when I called Maria to say that I
25 spanking thing, was that Paisley was no longer doing a 25 was mandated to report the first incident where Paisley
PAGE 195 PAGE 187
my - oy
1 week-to-week visitation schedule. I had baen very 1 had the little bruise on her bottom, and I had talked
2 clear from the beginning that week to week with the 2 to Maria previously about not spanking, she agreed that
3 difforences in parenting were distressful to Paislay. 3 not only.would she not spank Paisley, she would no
4 1and a positive side affoct of the fact that Paisley was 4 1longer spank any of her grandchildren.
§ no longer doing week to wesk dafinitely showed a 5 So there's a 111:2.19 disturbanca hare, where
6 positive impact on Paisley. 6 Paisley is viewing, ukm, the other children being
7 I saw her immediately after that had ceased. 7 spanked. And if Paisley is trying to establish some
8 and evan though she had had a visit back with Maria, 8 trust with Maria, I don't see that being very helpful.
9 Paisley's overall demeanor, well-being, was 9 Again, clinically, and it just contributes to
10 dramatically diffarent. 10 raisley's view of Maria, again, in quotations, mean.
1 So the f£irst clinical impression that the 11  So that's where we kind of are currently. The -- like
12  waek-to-waek visitation was not good for Paisley was 12 1 said, my biggest clinical impraession is that Paisley
13 confirmed, because that was the only variable that 13 does best when she is not on this waek-to-week, uhm,
14 changed. She was still continuing to sea both 14 (unintelligibla), you know, of back and forth. And
15 grandparents. She was continuing to have contact and 15 easpecially because the households are so different.
16 still actually saying to me that Nanny was mean. Her 16 But also bacause the relationship with Maria
17 overall, like I say, well-being was dramatically 17 and pPaisley is definitely strained, and it would need,
18 improved. 18 I think, soma clinical intervention to hdlp redirect
19 I have a little wild kitty out back at my 19 that and heal scme of the things that are going on
-|20 offica, and Paislay's ability to be calm, compliant, 20 between the two of them.
21 follow diractions and, I guass, practice the trust 21 Q Ms. Goddard, has there ever been any, uhm,
22 building was phenomenal, and just being patient with 22 disclosures or -- or, uhm, did you -- do you have any
23 this kitty coming to her. So it waa actually just a 23 impression of Paisley's view of Mr. McGrew?
24 sorendipitous practice, where Paislay, two days 24 A Uhm, she has not really talked about him. I
25 back-to-back, came and engaged with this little kitten, |25 did view a -- the video exchango where Maria was
PAGE 168 PAGE198 A-A0076
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1 picking up Paisley, I believe i.t\wisj the second pickup. 1 that were not tfue, or that were negative about her

2 and John McGrew was there, and Paisley dida't have any 2 Nanny? '

3 response to him. 5o sho hasn't really, to =ze, said 3 A Well, at three-and-a-half and four, that's

4 anything asbout him, but she seems to have a little or 4 really difficult for anybody to do. I'm really good

5 no react -- negative reaction towards him. It was 5 with children, and it would be really diffiocult for me, '

6 Maria that she has tha most negative reaction to. 6 aven over a long period of tima, to say something that
1 7 Q on the -- okay. . 7 wasn't accurate about a relationship that they were or

8 MS. AMENS: All right. I have no further 8 woro not enjoying. You know, kids at that age den't

9 questions. 9 have that defense mechanism, which actually keaps the

10 THE COURT: Cross axamination, Mr. Gerber. 10 truth pretty clean.

1" "MR. GERBER: Thank you, Your Honor. 1 Q oOkay. But my q;lestion was, did you consider
12 42 that as a possibility, that that's what was occurring?
13 CROSS EXAMINATION 13 A I alvays consider that,

14 By MR. GERBER: 14 Q oOkay. And have you ruled that out?

15 Q Ms. Goddard, is it true that the only 15 A  which part?

16 interaction you've had with these families is either an 16 Q That Paisley's being coached to say negative
17 in-office appointment with Paisley and her great 17 thi‘ngs, or to place labels on her Nanny, that she's ,
18 grandparents, the Luceros, and also video or phone 18 nmean.

19 conferencing? 19 A No. She's been very -- like I said, that's

20 A Yes. 20 probably the thing sha's been most consistent _aboiﬂ:,
21 Q okay. And you said that when you observed 21 and it hasn't had anything to do with, you know,
22 paisley in the McGrew home, you were surprised that the 22 vhather Pam or Michael Lucero are saying W.
23 behavior was incongruent with what Paisley was '23 Those are her verbalizations to me.
24 verbalizing to you, correct? 24 Q Right. .
25 A Right. 25 And the times when she's saying that to you is

PAGE 189 PAGE 201
o o i

1 Q And you said that you may be missing something, 1 when she's in the. custody of the Luceros, correct?

2 correct? 2 A Well, yes. But there's been times where shé

3 A Right. 3  has immediately come from Maria's hema, and I see her.

4 Q Have you been able to figure out what you are 4 So she could have said just as easily that she had a

5 nmissing? 5 great time with Maria.

6 A. Well, little pieces. Uhm, when littles arae ] Q Okay. But she's still in the Luceros' custody

7 saying words like mean, or they use broad, you know, 7 when you've interviewed her, correct?

8 strokes of, you know, trying to say how somebody is 8 A VYes.

9 t:eaei.ng\‘khea, they don't have the language to say very . 9 Q And she hasn't said those things when she's in
10 specifically about what it is that is bothering them. 10 the McGrews' custody?

1 Once the incident of the spanking came up, 1 A  Well, I -- my interactions with Paisley when
12 Paisley has been able to give a more detailed, uhm, I 12 she was with Maria ware really just to see if there
13 guess description as to why she feels, you know, Maria 13 was, uhm, like outward, uhm, distresa, you know, in the
14 is mean to her. And I think it has a lot to do with 14 relationship with Maria. And I really saw Paisley with
15 many more subtle behaviors than anything necessarily 45 a lot of her cousins most the time.
16 physical. 16 I -- I haven't had tha opportunity to actually
17 Paisley describes things of how she -- you 17 see Paisley with Maria, which would actually ba tha
18 xnow, eating is controlled. Nap time is very rigid. 18 very naext clinical ;ieca that would naed to be
19 1ike I said, the housaholds are vaery different. And 19 addressed to get this whole picture painted very .
20 raislay deals and sonses this as being very punitive 20 olearly.
21 and angry from Maria, that Maria is very angry with 21 Q Okay. So you haven't been able to test that
22 hor. and Paisley feels that Maria is angry with her a 22 theory?
23  1ot. 23 A I have not.
24 Q oOkay. Did you consider that the Luceros may 24 Q oOkay. Have you re-interviewed any collateral
25 have hired you and were coaching Paisley to say things |28 sources, other than the Luceros and the other

PAGE 200 ’ ] PAGE202  A-A0077
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1 interactions you've had with Maria McGrew and Paisley? 1 A Does ‘h:‘e/have secure attachments with Maria?

2 A I had Michael and Pam and Paisloy. And I had 2 wo.

3 one of Pam's daughter's present. And that -- that 3 Q So -- so you're saying she has a bond with the
4 was -- those ~- and theam Maria. Those are the people 4 Luceros, correct?

5§ that I have interviewed. 5 A Yes.

6 Q And that is everyone? 6 Q And you're saying she does not have a bond with
7 A Those are the paople that I've intarviewed, 7 Maria? -

8 yes. 8 A No. 8he does have a bond, okay. But there's

9 Q okay. Did you at some time have occasion to 9 the next phase of development that requires what is

10 discuss this case with the social worker, Brenda 10 dotermined to be secure attachment. And the secure
11 Kellay-Brace? 11 attachment has to do with trust and knowing that you're
12 A In - Brenda is the investigative social 12 safe. And -- and Paislay does not experience that with
13  worzkez? 13 Maria, not because she is, like, in danger 24-7, but

14 Q vYes. 14 because she is intermittently mistreated by Maria.

15 A Yeah. Brenda -- actually, I called her to see 15 Q oOkay. And that's based on your belief that
16 the status of the case. But Brenda did not 16 Maria mistreated her?

17 (unintelligible) ma, no. 17 A VYes. )

18 Q she did not what? ) 18 Q oOkay. And why do you believe Maria mistreated
19 A  She did not interviow me. She and I did not 19 her? .
20 have an open discussion. She just gave me the status 20 A Because Maria admits to having spanked Paisley.
21 of the case. 21 Q. /.okay. And is that your definition of
22 Q And what was the status of the case when you 22 nistreatment, when someone is spanked?
23 talked to her? 23 A  when a child is hit, yes, that is mistreatment.
24 A That was right baefore our hearing, I believe. 24 Tho research is very clear that it is damaging, and it
25 nand at that time, she said that she had gone over and 25 is -- it is an cbvious (unintelligible) continuum of

PAGE 203 PAGE 205
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1 did not feel that there was any danger, was her words, 1 the abuse spectzunm.

2 I beliave. 2 Q .Okay. Is that the definition of Nevada law, or
3 Q oOkay. And do you agree with her assessment? 3 just your research?

4 A I would say her -- I would agree with the idea 4 A 1It's clinical research.

5 that Lhe:e'a pxobably not, you know, not immirent 5 Q okay. Do you know what Nevada law is on -- on
6 dangor, yeah. I would agree with that, 6 mistreatment and abuse with the ~- what the definition
7 Q In your report that's marked Exhibit E, dated 7 is? )

8 April 15th, 2020 -- 8 A I beliave it has to leave a mark.

9 A Uh-huh. 9 Q oOkay. When you spokea to Ms. Kelley, or

10 Q -- on page 2 -- oh, excuse me. Let me go back 10 Ms. Brenda Kellay-Brace, did she inform you that the
11  to Exhibit D page 2, dated February 24th, 2020. 11 allegations against. Maria were unsubstantiated?
12 Early on in your findings, you state, Paisley 12 A I don't know that she had gotten that far,
13 clearly has a fond and sacure attachment with her 13 bacause she said shae hadn't finished the report.
14 naternal grandparents. That would be the Luceros, 14 Q oOkay. And you said you spoke to her just
15 correct? - 15 before the -~ the last hearing.
16 A Yeah. 16 A Tho hearing. Right.
17 Q And you had gone on to say her behavior -- her 17 Q Had she substantiated any abuse at that point?
18 behavior literally screams that she does not have this 18 A  Sho said no. That's why I said I think she
19 bond and secure attachment with her paternal 19 said she had found no danger, were her words. That's
20 grandparents. 20 just my recall. ’
21 Do you still stand by that finding? 21 Q Okay. And so you knew that before the last
22 A  well, okay, so thare's two lavals of, ubm, 22 hearing on July 7th?
23 bonding and secure attachmeant. So do I believe she has 23 A 1 did.
24 Dbonded with both grandparents? I do. B.uh she -- 24 MR. GERBER: Okay. I have no further
25 Q okay. So you've changed your opinion —- 25 questions, Your Honor. ‘
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1 THE COURT: Ms. Stone, d6 you have any 1 A  Sha gaVt“me sbsolutely no information at all.
2 gquestions for this witness? 2 I initiated the contact with her to see where the
3 MS. STONE: Does anybody —- 3 status was. So she did not call to interview me or
"4 THE COURT: Hang on a minute. We're gonna get 4 tell me what she had done. Thara was none of that
5 you a microphone. 5§ exchange.
6 6 Q So, Ms. Goddard, that wasn't my question. When
7 CROSS EXAMINATION 7 you spoke with her, did she tell you that she had been
8 BY MS. STONE: 8 in the McGrew home?
9 Q How come no one told me about any of the 9 A  she did not.
10 appointments, or any of the lawyers, or any of the -- 10 Q And shé didn't tell you that the statement that
11 the -- 11 paisley had fallen on the hearth -- the statement
12 A Who may I talking to? 12 matched the bruise?
13 THE COURT: This is Paisley's mother that 13 A  she did not. She did not. She actually was
14 you're talking to. 14 vory clesr that she could 'not stata anyth:.ng to me.
15 THE WITNESS: Oh, hi Kristin. 15 Q Are you aware that there is a wood hearth in
16 Q BY MS. STONE: Hi. 16 the McGraw home? ’
17 I didn't -- I wasn't notified about any of 17 A I anm not.
18 the -- what are they called -- meetings that they had. 18 Q When you observed Paisley in the McGrew home,
19 A With me? 19 which r.o.om was she in, or rooms? ’
20 Q Huh? 20 A  She was outside.
21 A  With me? 21 Q oOkay. During the time that you spoke with
22 Q Yeah. 22 Ms. McGrew concerning this bruise that Paisley had on
23 A I -- 1 wasn't awara that you were part of the 23 her bottom, did Ms. McGrew indicate to you that Paisley
24 process at the time, Kristin. ’ 24 had fallen on the hearth?
25 MS. STONE: All right. 25 A she did.
PAGE 207 PAGE 209
Ny Y :
1 THE COURT: Ms. Rodriguez, any questions? 1 Q So prior to speaking'with the Division, wezée
2 MS. RODRIGUEZ: She has no more questions, 2 you aware that -- or. prior to making the report, were
3 Judge? Sorry. 3 you aware that there was a hearth in the MéGrew home,
4 THE COURT: No. She's handed the microphone 4 Dpased on what Ms. McGrew had told you? ’
5. back to the balliff. ' 5 A Like I told Maria when I spoke with her, I'm
6 6 not the invastigator. I'm telling you. that as a
7 CROSS EXAMINATION 7 candated raporter, I needed to report.
8 BY MS. RODRIGUEZ: 8 Q okay. Ms. Goddard, my question: At the time
9 Q Ms. Goddard, I just have a few more guestions 9 that you made the report to the Division, had you
10 following. up on Mr. Gerber's. When you spoke with 10 already retained -- obtained, excuse me, the
11 Ms. Kelley-Brace from the Division, did Ms. Brace 11  information from Ms. McGrew that there was a wood
12 indicate to yt‘)u that she had been to the McGrew home 12 hearth in the .home? )
13 and had physically investigated the surroundings in 13 A I reported the abuse after I spoke to Maria.
14  that home? 14 and at that time, yes, she said that Paisley had fallen
15 A So remind me, is Kelley the one that I did the 15 on the hearth. .
16 £irst report to? 16 Q oOkay. So you were aware, based upon
17 Q I can -- I can restate the question without 17 Ms. McGrew's statement, that theré was purportedly a
18 giving you thae answer. 18 hearth?
19 When you spoke ta the individual from the 19 A That's what she told me, yes.
20 Dpivision who was doing the investigation on the alleged |20 Q Okay. When you made your report to the
21 abuse with Paisley, do you recall that individual 21 Dpivision, did you disclose that information?
22 indicating to you that she had investigated -- had been 22 A I did.
23 in the McGrew home to determine whether or not there 23 Q oOkay. When you testified in this court on July
24 vere objects -- well, whether or not thexe was a ) 24 7th of 2020, is there a reason you did not disclose at
25 fireplace hearth there? |25 that point that you had had a conversation with the
PAGE 208 PAGE210 . A-A0079
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1 Division indicating they were n}?’gubstantiating the 1 czather angry. A{'d I guess it would be -- have soma

2 report? 2 compulsions about how some things needed to be, that

3 A " I don't think the quastion was asked. 3 paisley has stated to ma in the past, like that really g

4 Q Do you believe that that information was 4 didn't -- like they didn't fit in to the'big picture of

5 important for the Court to know at that time? 5 things and now thay do. .

6 A Again, the guestion wasn't asked, and so a lot 8 Q okay. May I ask, whdt has Ms. Lucero indicated

7 of tizmes when I try to offar, I'm not allowed, and 7 that -~ concerning Maria McGrew being mean;

8 other times I'm allowed. So I usually just wait for 8 specifically? .

9 the cue. 9 A  Well, uhm, probably the most recent disturbing
10 Q oOkay. I'm going to refer to your letter to the |10 disolosure was her and, uhm -- well, like I say, Pammy,
11  court dated April 5th -- or, excuse me, to Ms. Amens 11 1 don't remember ave:ybo‘dy who participated, but she
12 dated April 15th. The Court has -- it has been marked 12 was describing TJ's funeral and service where the
13 and admitted as Exhibit E with the Court. 13 pastor was going on ‘and on about how awful TJ was, and
14 A oOxay. 14 basically what a loser he was, and how awful ha was.
15 Q The second page of that, which is -- well, the 15 And that Joe, Max’ial's husband, was sobbing, and that
16 second page of it, it indicates your statement, Upon 16 somebody ove;h?ud Maria say, EKnock it off. Be a man.
17 most recent exchange, Maria reported Paisley 47 aAnd that John finally stood up in tha middle of the
18 spontaneously stated, Granny will tell Ms. Geri if you 18 service and said, Stop it. I loved my son.
19 are mean to me. These are clear indications that 19 And that was disturbing, that Maria would
20 paisley feels responsible for transferri:nq messages 20 . somshow think that that was okay to treat her son, even
21 between the household. 21 after his death, at his funeral. .
22 Is that a concern for you? 22 Q So this is information --
23 A It had bean a concern for me. It absolutely 23 A  That.sounds like a ver\y angry thing to do.
24  vas. 24 Q Did you confirm this information with any other
25 Q oOkay. And that message that you quoted, does 25 party?

PAGE 211 PAGE 213
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1 that indicate that Paisley was providing information to 1 A I haven't had tims, ma‘'am.

2 the McGrews or to tha Luceros? 2 Q I'm sorry?
‘3 A I would say she's reporting that to -~ I would 3 A I have not had the time.

4 say Maria, 4 Q Okay. Were there any other specific statements.

5 Q So she's telling Maria that Granny will tell 5 made to you that would cause you to believe that Maria

6 Ms. Geri if you're mean to me? 6 McGrew is an angry person? :

7 A I don't think that's how she said it, but that 7 A Uiun, actually, there was several. Again, Pammy

8 would be the implication, yes. 8 =zeported that when TJ was alive, thére was more than

9 Q so this is quoted by you in your letter. 9 one ococasion whera she had to go to a laundromat-and
10 A I'm just going on my recall. 10 pick him up bacause he had been kicked out by Maria.

11 Q okay. 11 And it was wintertime. And he didn't have a coat and

12 A I don't have oiy letter in front of me. That's 12 barely shoas on, And Pammy had also said to me tyat

13 a1 13 that was ono of the reasons that TJ zeported to har

14 Q okay. Okay. You,also make a racommendation 14 that he did not vant'Paisley in Maria's care.

15 thereafter, number one, it's clinically determined that |15 Q How, may I ask, do these statements from

16 vPaisley is not in harm's way while in the paternal 16 Ms. Lucero assist in play fair be for Paisley?

17 grandparents' home. 17 A  Well, Paislay kesps saying Maria is mean, And

18 Wwhat, if anything, has led you to believe that 18 1 nave been an expart with children for over 30 years.

19 that statement is no longer true? 19 But I know they don't live in a vacuum, and so that

20 A  Well, the spoon spanking is distu:lbinq. And 20_ there are pecple that are around them that care for

21 then in interviewing Pamela Lucero a little bit more 21 them, and they're in their watch and ‘supervision, who

22 about some of the history. Then I guess soma other 22 can £ill in those blanks for me so that I get a very

23 piacaes that were disturbing to ma that kind of f£it in 23 t;onpl.ato clinical pict B that obviounsly

24 the idea that what Paisley raeports about Maria being 24 cannot coma f£rom a three-and-a-hal€ year old.

25 moan, that there's socme history about Maria being 25 Just as when you would take her to the dentist
PAGE 212 PAGE214  A-A0080

10/18/2021 11:54:54 AM Page 211 to 214 of 375 8 of 49 sheets




: " 7 N Q e
1 _or the pediatrician, you would just not gat har 1 Q BY MS.TRODRIGUEZ: Are you aware of how long
2 history, you would ask '£o: the other pecple who are 2 Praisley continues to be upset once she goes to the
3 _ caring for her what has occurred. 3 Ferguson home for an exchange to the McGrew home?
4 Q When did these statements that Ms. Lucero made 4 A I'm not sure how -~ actually, I'm not. Because
5 to you, when did they begin concerning Maria McGrew's 5 I'm not sure how long that exchange takes place. 8o,
6 anger? 6 no, I am not aware.
7 A The, nhm, the anger came up because of me. Pam 7 Q When Palsley was with Ms. McGrew and you were
8 and Michael, at the very beginning, ware saying that 8 able to observe that interaction, did Paisley indicate
9 thay ware upset about how Maria had, they feel, 9 that Maria was mean to her at that time?
10 manipulated Kristin in to, you know, having Paisley's 10 A Paisley has always baeen :Ln the care -- excuse
11 oshared custoedy. Uhm, but they didn't talk about 1 =me. Paisley has always been in the company of other
12 Mazia‘s angex. Tl;ae was generated from ma. 42 children when I see her with Maria McGrew. So 1like I
13 Q Do you remember approximately when, in your 13 said, that's one of the clinical pieces that X have not
14 clinical relationship with Paisley, tfhat was brought 14 ¢£ully assessed, vhere it is just Paisley with Maria.
15 forth? 15 Q Dpid you indicate to Maria that you would prefer
16 A  vwell, after the spanking incident, it really 16 to see them without any other children around?
17 =rose to the top very quickly. Bacause I think Paisley 17 A I have actually asked Maria to be involved in
18 was, you know, all the sudden quite reliaved that 18 raisley's caré a number of times. And that would
19 somabody was, that I was, actually believing har. 19  iccludo that.
20 Because prior to then I think she aven looked at me, 20 Q 5o you did ask Maria to have -- FaceTime you in
21 like, you're not baliaeving ma, aeven though she kept 21 to a time when it was just her and Paisley, no other
22 repeating herself and repeating herself and repeating 22 children?
23 hnorbelf. You know, I had some doubt. 23 A I dida't ask that specifically, no. I asked
24 Q so, say, June of 20207 24 ner specifically to be involved in Paisley's eare and ,
25 A Yes. 25 treatment.
PAGE 215 PAGE 217
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1 Q Mid June. Sorry. 1. MS. RODRIGUEZ: Okay. I actually don't have
2 Prior to that, you had been informed that there 2 any other questions, Judge. Thank you.
3 was a great deal of animosity during the exchanges for 3 THE COURT: Redirect?
4 paisley to go to the McGrews' home, correct? 4 MS. AMENS: Yes, Your Honor. Just a few
] A  Well, there's a lot of things going in to the 8§ things.
6 exchange. But, yes, that was part-of it. 6
7 Q Were you also informed prior to that that 7 REDIRECT EXAMINATION
8 Ppaisley would go to the Ferguson home with her brother, 8 BY MS. AMENS:
9 carter, to facilitate that exchange? 9 Q s, Goddard, going back to the incident that
10 A That -- yes, I know that's where it occurred. 10 was reported to DCFS, I understood you to say that
11 Q At any time, did you reach out to the Fergusons’ 41 Ms. Brace never called to talk with you about what had
12 to -- to determine what their impression was of the 12 been rep;orted.
13 exchange and Paisley's demeanor? ) 13 pid you have a chance to give her -- did you
14 A I did not. Again, I -- I've got limited time 14 'disclose to her what Paisley had disclosed to you?
15 that I can manage this, But, yes, I know that's a 15 A It was -- that was not a walcome conversation.
16 piece. 16 sShe made it very clear that she wasn't interested from
17 Q oOkay. And you said you did a couple of the 17 so -~ so she did not -- she did not know that Paisley
18 raceTime for a couple of the visitation exchanges? 18 thad disclosed about being in trouble, uhm, and getting
19 A Yes. 19 spanked —-
20 Q How many of those were you able to FaceTime? 20 - MS. RODRIGUEZ: I object. That calls --
21 A Well, when I got Maria involved, I think she 21 THE WITNESS: She got no --
22 ana I did three. And then I -~ I was doing them pratty 22 THE COURT: Just a minute. Just a mlnute,
23  consistently before and after with the Luceres. 23 Ms. Goddard. There was an cbjection.
24 Q Would it surprise you -- ’ 24 What was your question?
25 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Well, strike that, Judge. 25 THE WITNESS: Sorry.
PAGE 216 . PAGE218 A-A0081
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1 THE COURT: What was yoHuestion? 1 she -- she diSclose whether she saw that spanking, or

2 MS. AMENS: My question was that she had not 2 just knew about it?

3 disclosed -- 3 A  she said she saw it. BShe said they -~ my

4 MS. RODRIGUEZ: No. You said she didn’t know. 4 impreasion was very clear, that she knew they got

5 MS. AMENS: No. That -- 5 whooped with the whooping spoon, because she was there.

6 THE COURT: All right. Why don't you just ask 6 Q oOkay. And that was concerning to you?

7 another question, and we'll see if Ms. Rodriguez still 7 A very. ,

8 has an objection? ) 8 Q In regards to her care and treatment?

9 MS. AMENS: Okay. 9 A Yes.

10 Q BY MS. AMENS: Okay. You were not able to 10 Q okay. Okay. On the exchanges, just real

11 disclose what Paisley had told you, correct? 11 briefly, is it your impression that the discomfort, or
12 A Right. 12 the breakdowns at exchanges happenaed once or twice, or
13 Q okay. Did she disclose anything about what 13 did you understand them to be a regular occprrence?
14 Ppaisley had told her? 1? A Paisley's breakdowns were prior to the

15 A  The social worker? 15’ exchanges, or maybe up to tha exchange, was a very

16 Q Yes. 16 consistent behavior of Paisley's. \

17 A No. It was not a dialogua. 17 Q And were they just a tantrum that was ovex in a
18 Q' So would it surprise -- would it surprise you .18 couple of minutes, or how traumatic were these --

19 if her disclosurs from Paisley was basically the same 19 A  Thay were ~-

20 as what you had disclosed, except she first said 20 MR. GERBER: Your Honor, I'm going to object -~
21 BpBraxton had been the one who caused the problem, and 21 THE COURT: Just a moment. Just a moment.

22 then she said Noah? 22 us. Goddard, there's -- T N
23 A Again, I -- it becomes inconsequential, because 23 THE WITNESS: -- {unintelligible) 45 minutes to
24 tho point was that Paisley was spanked by Maria, and 24 an hour. .

25 Maria admitted to spanking her. 8o the circumstances 25 THE COURT: Mr. Gerber, what's your objection?

PAGE 219 PAGE 221
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1 around it, I guess I don't see ~-~ 1 MR. GERBER: The objection.is that Ms. Goddard

2 Q Is it -~ 2 has not witnessed these occurrences or exchanges on a

3 - A -- of what's going on. 3 regular basis, so she would have to specu}ate the

4 Q 1s it common for a child of ha.r age to 4 answer to this question. She's only going off of

5 interchange some of the cousins' names? 8 hearsay of what the Luceros have told her or chosen to

6 A I intorchange cousins' names all the time. 6 show her.

7 Q Okay. So the fact that she would havelsaid 7 THE COURT: Ms.. Amens, lay more of a

8 Noah, meaﬂing Braxton, that wouldn't concern you? 8 foundation.

9 A on, (unintelligible) you know, the other three 9 Q ' BY MS. AMENS: Well, let me ask a different

10 people that were there. I mean, she's in two yery busy 10 question. Of the exchanges that you have obsel;ved, do
41  households. 11 you have an understanding of how long the distress was
12 Q oOkay. All right. When she initially disclosed |12 for Paisley? !

13 the -- when she initially disclosed the spanking that 13 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Judge, I'm going to object.

14  vas reported to DCSF ([sic), did she disclose whether 14 THE WITNESS: The ones that I have witnessed?
15 that spanking took place in front of all of the kids? 15 MS. RODRIGUEZ: It's been asked and answered.
16 A I —- no. That was not -- I maan, that's -- 16 I asked that direct question, and Ms. Goddard indicated
17 1 -- again, I'm not the investigator. All she told me 17 she had no idep.

18 is that she had been bad, or that sha had, you know, 18 THE COURT: The objecl-:ion is sustained.

19 hed a bad day, or something, and she was very shame -~ ‘,19 MS. AMENS: I don't -- okay.
20 shameful. She had her eyes down and looking.sad. And 20 No further questions.

21 then she said because she was bad, sha got a spanking 21 THE COURT: Recross, Mr. Gerber?

22 with the spanking spoon. That was the ~~ that was the 22 MR. GERBER: I have no further questions, Your
23 disclosure frem Paislaey. 23 Honor.

24 Q Okay. When .she disclosed that there was an 24 THE COURT: Ms. Stone, do you have any other
25 additional spanking in the last couple of weeks, did 25 questions?
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1 MS. STONE: No. \ 1 which.will alsSo~De admitted confidentially, is the
2 THE COURT: Ms. Rodriguez, any recross? 2 nNevada Initial Assessment report regarding the incident
3 MS. RODRIGUEZ :. No, Judge. Thank you. 3 with Ms. McGraw a'nd Paisley and the whooping spoon. I
4 THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Goddard. You are 4 redacted nothing from that. So ’l:hat will be admitted
5 excused. We will conclude the phone call. 5 confidentially as Exhibit 1,
6 THE WITNESS: Thank you. Appreciate it. Bye. 6 (Exhibit 7 marked and admitted.)
7 (The witness left the stand.) 7 THE COURT: So I was thinking about this case
8 THE COURT: All right. Before we get back to 8 1ast night and this morning. And there's something I
9 Ms. Ferguson's testimony, I want to put some things on 9 want you all to talk about over the noon hour. I still
10 the record. 10 do not have enough evidence to make a determination of
11 1 read yesterday the Nevada Initial Assessment 11  whether Kristin sﬁona is unable to provide care for
12 report regarding the 2014 investigation of Luceros. I 12 these children. I need more avidence of that before I
13 redacted a name throughout the report. That person was |13 can make that finding.
14 not specifically identified as the reportinq'party. 14 However, if I make that finding, it sounds like
15 But reading the substance of the report, I got the 15 thg Fergusons, or at least Ms. Ferguson, is fine with
16 sense that that person was. So that i1s the only thing 16 sharing guardianship of Carter with the Luceros. So I
17 that has been redacted from that report. That person's 17 would like you all to talk about if I order a
18 name has not come up in this case. So it's not 18 guardianship, are the parties in agreement that they
19 relevant. And if that person was the reporting party, 19 would share guardianship with Carter?
20 1 needed to protect that person's identity by statute. 20 If they are, you still need to present your
21. So the redacted copy was given to the 21 case, Counsel, that the guardian is needed, but we
22 attorneys. That's pursuant to NRS 432(b).290(2) (a}, 22 wouldn't have to continue with what is becoming a
23 that says that a Court, for in camera inspection only, 23 custody case between the Fergusons and the Luceros. We
24 can read records from the Division of Child and Family 24 can then just move on to the issue with the -- with
25 services and can disclose those records to the public, 25 paisley, whether she needs a guardian and who that
PAGE 223 PAGE 226 '
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1 or the Division can, unless the Court determines that 1 gquardian, or guardians, should be.
2 public disclosure -- let me read this again. 2 So I want you to discuss that-over the lunch
3 The Court can make a determipation that public 3 break. See if there's any agreement regarding Carter.
4 "disclosure is necessary for the determination of an 4 . But again, I've not make find -- made a finding
5 issue befors it. So I've made that determination and 5 yet, Ms. Stone, that your children need a guardian. I
6 provided those records to the attorneys. ‘6 don't have enough evidence to do that yet. The only
7 As I told you yesterday afternoon, you can't 7 question is if I make that determination whether the
8 1let your clients have copies of those. They can read 8 Luceros and the E‘erg;asons agree to sharing that
9 them. 9 guardianship. .
10 So that will be -- the redacted copy will be an 10 We're gonna go ahead and take our lunch break.
11 exhibit from Mr. Gerber, whatever next in line is. 1Is 11 we're gonna start back up again at 1:15. I have
42 that 47 12 another case that's scheduled for two o'clock -- hang
13 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Judge, I would ask that bé 13 on a minute, Ms. Amens -- for two o'clock. I dom't
14 confidentiel. ’ 44 xnow if anyone i{s going to show up to object to that
15 THE COURT: Ft will be. 18 case. We may only have one side here. If that
16 This will be Exhibit 6, and that will be 16 happens, we're gonna stop at two o'clock. That will be
17 confidential. ) . 17 about a 10- or 15-minute hearing. 1I'll get that done,
18 (Exhibit 6 marked and admitted.) 18 and we'll come back to your case.
19 THE COURT: Filed in the court file 19 If someone shows up to object in that case so
20 confidentially will be the copy that I received from 20 that I'm gonna have a longer hearing, we'll just finish
21 the social worker when she testified yesterday. That's |21 your hearing and I'll take theirs when we‘re done.
22 the complate copy that has the .redacted information not |22 Ms. Amens, what did you need?
23 rodacted. So that's going to be filed in this case 23 MS. AMENS: Yes, Your Honor. Sorry.
24 confidentially. ) ' 24 We had talked about Janell Anderson just giving
25 Then as -~ it will be Mr. Gerber's Exhibit 7, 25 a quick report. She is available by cell phone.
PAGE 224 PAGE226 AL A0083
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medical, schodr-decisions, and not have to share those

1 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 1

2 MS. AMENS: And, yeah, I think she'll just give 2 decisions. That is their as to -- their position as to
3 you an update of how nllany times she'.s met. She doesn't 3 the petition.

4 have -- what my underétanding is, she's not spent 4 THE COURT: I understand. That is not what I
5 enough time with these parties to -- to be able to give . 8 understood of her testimony yesterday, but I understand
6 any kind of recommendation at all. 6 that's the position.

.7 THE COURT: 1Is there any relevance, then, to 7 MS. AMENS: My client -- basically, there is no
8 her testimony? 8 agreement., My clients were willing to go -- to do a
9 MS. AMENS: Mr. Gerber and I had talked that 9 co-guardianship, which would include kind of like a

10 ‘that ~- it would -- about that, that -- that it would 10 legal qustody arrangement. So -- bu;: there's no

41 be beneficial potentially for the Court. If you don't 11 agreement between the parties.

12 need it, I think I can .just let her go. And we're fine |12 THE COURT: Okay.

13  with that. 13 MS. AMENS: Your Honor?

14 THE COURT: Do you -- Counsel, can you enter in 14 THE COURT: Yes.

15 to a stipulation how many times she's met with 15 MS. AMB;!S: Can I ask just one quick question
18 everybody? Do you know? 16 for tomorrow morning. Can we get going at 8:307?

17 MR. GERBER: Well, Lf she doesn't have any 17 THE COURT: We can start at B8:30. But what I

18 recommendations at this time, I don't think it would be 18 don't want you all doing is spreading it out to

19 productive. I haven't actually spoken to her to see if 19 thraee-and-a-half hours instead of the three hours we

20 that is her position. I trust Ms. Amens at her word. 20 have it scheduled for,_ because I have other work to do.

21 MS. AMENS: Well, I think the parties could 21 MS. AMENS: Yes, Your Honor.

22 tell us how many times they've met. I think it's only |22 THE COURT: So are you both going to be able to

23 one, but I don't know. 23 . get it done within the three hours?

24 MS. RODRIGUEZ: I believe it's twice. We could |24 MS. AMENS: Yes, Your Honor.

25 jointly, like the three of us, could call Janell, or 25 THE COURT: If I can just kind of swap out of

PAGE 227 PAGE 229
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1 Ms. Anderson, as soon as we step off, before we talk 4 the time between the beginning and the end.
2 about settlement. And then"we could make a disclosure 2 MS. AMENS: I think so.
3 to the Court based upon -- as officers of the Court. 3 MS. RODRIGUEZ: I hope so, Judge. Some
4 THE COURT: Let's just do it that way. 4 circumstances came up with my client.
5 MS. AMENS: Okay. ’ 5 THE COURT: Uh-huh.
6 THE COURT: So I'll give you some time to do 6 MS. RODRIGUEZ: I have been unable to speak to
7 that, to talk about Carter, and we will resume at 1:15. 7 him or reach him, so I'm working very diligently to do
8 MR. GERBER: One more question about the 8 that.
9 exhibits, Your Honor. 9 _THE COURT: Okay. All right.

10 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 10 MS. RODRIGUEZ: But we can update you in the

11 MR. GERBER: You've placed Exhibit 6 in to 11  nmorning.

12 evidence. Has it'.' been admitted, or do I néed to make a 12 MS. AMENS: Thank you.

13 motion -- 13 THE COURT: All right. Yesterday was my third

14 THE COURT: It's admitted. Both of those 14 ten-hour day in a row. I'm not whining. I'm a i

15 reports are admitted. 15 volunteer in this position. But I'm starting to get a

16 MR. GERBER: Okay. Thank you, Your Honor. 16 1ittle tired. .

17 THE COURT: All right. We're in recess. 17 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Yes.

18 .(Recess.) 18 THE COURT: So we had Ms. Ferguson on the

19 THE COURT: Counsel, is there any agreement 19 stand. And --

20 about Carter? 20 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Sorxy. And we spoke with

21 MR. GERBER: Your Honor, my clients' position 21 Ms. Anderson, Judge, during the break.

22 has not changed. They have petitioned for general 22 THE COURT: Yes.

23 guardianship. Although, 2‘43. Ferguson is willing to 23 MS. RODRIGUEZ: If I may?

24 share visitation, I don't think that she was speaking 24 THE COURT: Uh-huh.

25 as to legal custody. They want to be able to make -~ 125 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Ms. Anderson indicated she has
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1 met with the parties, the Lucer}é’t/md the McGrews, two 1 week off for Catter, and the alternating weekends on
2 times. The first time was a two~hour meeting, the 2 Paisley. So that will ba my counter motion.
3 ‘second time was a one-hour meeting. - 3 MR. GERBER: Yeah, we did not have an
4 THE COURT: Met with them all together? 4 agreement. My motion is independent from anything
5 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Yes. Sorry. 8§ Ms. Amens understood or is motioning. I'm asking the
6 THE COURT: Okay. 6 Ccourt establish the status quo prior to the ex parte
7 MS. RODRIGUEZ: And she also spoke with 7 motién, because the al:léqations by the testimony and by
8 Ms. Goddard. Ms. Anderson indicated that she feels 8 the reports were shown to be unsubstantiated.
9 there's a lot of work to do with these parties, that 9 . THE COURT: Okay. I'm not making a decision
10 there is a lot of grief, a great deal of grief and loss |10 either way at this point. Ms. Amens hasn't had a’
11 issues that they all need to work through. She feels 11 chance to put on any of her case yet. We'll see how
42 that the main issue with the parties is the conflict, 12 far we get today, and I'll let yoq know whether I can
13 and it's causing high stress for Paisley. 13 nmake a decision. If I do, it will just be a temporary
14 She belleves that it's important for the 14 order.

{15 parties to have consistent routines that will help the 15 Ms. Amens, do you have anything.to add to what
16 child to adjust, consistent discipline, consistent 16 uMs. Rodriguez said about the phone 'call with '
17 bedtime, dinnertime, breakfast time, and eventually 17 Ms. Anderson?

18 consistent homework routines. That's -- those are 18 MS. AMENS: No, Your Honor. We were all three
19 going to be necessary. She believes that the high 19 on the -- on the call together. And Ms. Rodriguéz took
20 conflict and disparagement is not emotionally safe for 20 notes..

21 raisley. 21 THE COURT: Okay. All right. So,

22 Her goal is to have positive conflict -~ 22 Ms. Rodriguez, do yo;.l have more questions for

23 conflict resolution and reunification -- reinforcement. |23 Ms. Ferguson?

24 she believes that in the end, her goal is £o help the 24 - MS. RODRIGUEZ: Yes, Your Honor.

25 parties treat each other like business partners and be 25 THE COURT: Ms. Ferguson, please come forward.

PAGE 231 PAGE 233
a iy

1 positive and respectful with each other. 1 You can have a seat. You're still under oath.

2 The two times she met with them, Judge, was 2 . Go ahead, Ms. Rodriguez.

3 this month -- well, was July. I forgot we were -- 3 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Thank you.

4 THE COURT: Thank you. 4 (The witness resumed the stand.)

5 Anything to add to that, Mr. Gerber? 5 ’

6 MR. GERBER: As to talking about scheduling, by | 6 CROSS EXAMINATION (Continued)

7 my estimation, I do not believe that we are going to 7 BY MS. RODRIGUEZ:

8 finish with all of the witnesses today. 5o I would 8 Q Ms. Ferguson, we were discussing the

9 make a motion that the Court continue with the hearing 9 relationship between Paisley and her brother, Carter —-
10 “through five o'clock today, continue the hearing by 10 A Yes. ,

11 scheduling additional dates to be able to complete the 1 Q -- when we ended, and the fact that you're --
12 testimony. 12  see Paisley quite often. How often do you see Palsley?
13 And in the meantime, I will motion the Court, 13 sorry.

14 that the Court, based on the evidence presented through |14 A  Whon she was coming, wa ware seeing her until

15 five o'clock today, that the Court make a determination |15 Maria got there to pick her up, or Maria was already

16 that the parties resume the status quo of 16 there. And then du:ing the week, we would go over to

17 one week on/one week off until we can get back to court |17 Maria's.

18 and make a final determination in the matter. 18 Q Were there times during the exchange when the
19 THE COURT: Okay. I'll see what evidence I 19 Luceros would drop Paisley off and the McGrew person
20 have heard at that point. If the other hearing I have 20 was not there?

21 at two o'clock is going to be brief, I am going to take 21 A Maria -- I had asked Maria to come at 4:05,

22 a break for that. But we will go until 5:00. 22 beacause there was an altercation between Maria and

23 MS. AMENS: Your Honor, when we were talking as 23 Pamela in my living room. ‘Pamela had come in for the

24 a group in terms of the status quo, my understanding 24 oxchange. Maria had shown up. She was :l.n- the living

25 was the status quo would be the one week on/one 25 room. And I asked Pamela if thera was anything to pass
-, PAGE 232 PAGE234 A-A0085 '
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4 down from Paisley. Maria is ai.t:ﬁ'gj on the love seat, 1 Q Mr. McGTew?

2 and Pamela says, I will tell you, but I won't tell her. 2 A wo.

3 Q Dpo you remember approximately when that was? 3 Q Dbid anyone from DCFS contact you regarding the

4 A I want to say in the beginning, whan all this 4 allegations against Ms. McGrew abusing Paisley?

5 happened. And after that, I just asked Maria to start 5 A No.

8 coming at 4:05 to avoid conflict. 6 Q Has Paisley ever said anything to you during

7 Q Where were the children, Carter and Paisley? 7 these exchange times concerning Ms. McGrew spanking

8 A  They were in the house. 8 her, or hurting her?

9 Q wWere they in the living room? 9 A o
10 A Yes. . 10 Q Have you ever had to convince Paisley that she
11 Q oOkay. And what was Ms. McGrew's response to 11 needs to go with either party?

12 Ms. Lucero's statement? 12 A No.
13 A  Well, I'm sure she was upsat and hurt. 13 Q okay.
14 Q Did she say anything? 14 A Towards the last visit, when we were getting
15 A No. 15 botn kids together, uvhm, Paisley was gonna go hide.
16 Q Did she at all attempt to engage with 16 1ngstead, Maria walked in the door, she almost got
17 Ms. Lucero based on Ms. Lucero's statement? 17 knocked ~- knocked down b Paisley was giving her
18 A No. 18 kisses and everything else.
19 Q Have you observed any other engagements between 19 Q what interaction do you have with the
20 any of the Luceros and any of the McGrews, which would 20 children's biological mother? Any?
21 .cause you concern for Paisley's well-being? 21 A  We used to ba very closa. I'd like to think
22 A N. 22 that -- X mean, sha'll still toxt me once in a while
23 Q oOkay. Just that one incident? 23 and say, Can I have a picture of Carter, and I'll send
24 A Yes. 24 it to her. 5o, I mesn, it's mot great, but I think
25 Q since you asked that the parties basically -- 25 that we can rebuild that relationship.
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1 A  Come five minutes ~- 1 Q oOkay. You testified on direct that at one time

2 Q -- have a space between their arriving -- 2 Ms. Lucero yelled, That's it, we're not doing this

3 A It was Ms. McGrew that I asked to come later. 3 anymore, we are going back to court, during the

4 Q Okay. Have you had any problems with | 4 exchange.

8§ Ms. McGrew complying with that? 5 A Yes.

6 A No. 6 Q Do you recall approximately when that was?

7 Q Has Paisley's behavior during exchanges changed 7 A Wo. She has said it two or three times. 8o I

8 once Ms. McGrew waited to come? 8 can't tall you when it all occurred.

9 A No, they haven't. RAs a matter of fact, when 9 Q Do you recall when Paisley said that Granny
10 paisley comes, we'ze waiting for Maria, Maria will pull 10 said I can't see Nanny anymore, the approximate time
11 in to the driveway, and Paisley will sit there and say, 11  frame?

12 1 got to go hide. Nammy's got to find me. .So Paislay 12 A That was back in -- let's see, we're in August
13 will go hide, Maria will come in. And, lika, she's 13 now. It would have been back in July. I want to say
14 hiding, you got to go find her. So Maria will start 14 July or June, before all of this talk with Maria.
45 1locking for her. And that's a game that they have 15 THE COURT: - Is it Nammy or Nanny?
168 played ever sinca all of this has started. 16 THE WITNESS: She goes either way, Nammy,
17 Q Have you ever observed Paislaey to be fearful of |17 Nanny.
18 Ms. McGrew? 18 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
19 A o. 19 Sorry, Ms. Rodriguez.
20 Q Have you ever observed Paisley to be fearful of |20 MS. RODRIGUEZ: No. I actually had it both
21 Ms. Lucero? 21 ways in my notes, so thank you.
22 A wo. 22 THE COURT: Me, too.
23 Q Have you observed Paisley to be fearful of 23 Q BY MS. RODRIGUEZ: So was it before the ex
24 Mr. Lucero? 24 parte motion was filed?
25 A No. 25 A Yes. .
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A Yes. kvmael.a Lucaro had told me that Carter had

1 Q okay. Was it before th}dleqed spanking 1
2 occurred? 2 an appointment, it was on our week, and that .ha needed
3 A  Yeah. 3 to go. And I said, Okay. I had called Travis and’
4 Q since the ex parte motion has been filed, are 4 talked to him about it. I allowad them to pick Carter
5 you still seeing Paisley for exchanges for the 5 up early. I asked if we could have him on Friday.
6 weekends? 6 Uhm, there was no answer, so I just -- I didn't push
7 A oOnly if Paisley wants to see me. Pamala 7 it.
8 brought her up cne day and said that Paisleyiwanted to 8 Q Do you know what, if any determination, Nevaéa
9 see me. So I went out there and sat, and sha gave me a 9 Early Intervention made regarding Carter, concerning
10 hug and a kiss. 10 carter's developmental abilities?
1 Q At the Lucero home? 11 A No. I do not.
12 A No. At my home. . . 12 Q oOkay. Were you aware that
13 Q okay. 13 Mr. and Mrs. Lucero -- Lucero, excuse me, made an
14 A  And it's when they weze dropping off Carter. 14 appointment to take Carter to the Shrinex's?
15 Q Has Carter been positive for any type of drug? 15 A VYes.
16 A None that I know of. 16 Q Do you know why?
17 Q oOkay. You testified yesterday that you quit 17 A For his legs and their shinms.
18 your job to take care of Carter. Where were you 18 Q And were they able to take him there?
19 working? 19 A  Yes, thoy wera.
20 A I was working at Highland Manor in the laundry ¢t (20 Q Do you know what the findings from Shriner's
21 departmoent. 21  were?
22 Q oOkay. Are you able to sufficiently meet 22 A No. Pamela Lucero told me she had all of the
23 carter's needs without that income? 23 reoports, and she was going to keep them. I didn't ask
24 ’A Yes. 24 for'a copy. I figured that's what Pamela wanted, you
25 Q Do you have Carter on insurance? 25 xnow. : . ‘
PAGE 239 PAGE 241
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1 A  Yes, we do. He's on my husband's medical. 1 Q@ Were you told that you needed to do any type of
2 Q How long has he been on that insurance? 2 exercises, or activities, or anything special with
3 A Ever since we started -- wa put him on after wa 3 carter for his dev;alopment or for his legs?
4 started the guardianship. 4 A No, I was not. .
5 Q oOkay. RAfter you got the first temporary order? 5 Q oOkay. Did Shriner's bill your insurance?
6 A Yes. . 4 6 A  To my knowledge, no.
7 Q Have you been able to take Carter to the 7 Q okay. Has Carter had any issues with the
8 doctor? 8 examine exchanges?
9 A Yes. 9 A No.
10 Q Has he had any needs that you were unable to 10 Q How often would you say that Paisley a'ctua.‘[ly
1  meet medically? 11 had issues with the exchanges that you observed
12 A No. 12 personally?
13 Q Was he up to date on his vaccinations when you |13 A I would say at least three or four.
14 started the vaccination -- 14 Q Three to four times?
15 A He's up to data on all of his shots. * 15 A = Yaah. But, uhm, there was only twice with the
16 Q was he when you first put him on your 16 screaming, and then onca she gets inside the house,
17 insurance? 17 it's seconds, sha goes to tha toy box and she's fine.
18 A I think ke might have been behind ore or two. 18 Q what -- how does Carter react when Paisley has
19 Q okay. And were you able to get him caught up? 19 these issues at the exchanges?
20 A Yes. 20 A EHe's fine.
21 Q Who is his pediatrician? 21 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Okay. I have nothing further,
22 A  His padiatrician is Dr. Degusman over at Golden 22  Judge.
|23 meartn. 23 THE COURT: Redirect, Mr. Gerber?
24 - @Q Did you know that Carter had been seen by NEIS, |24 MR. GERBER: Thank you, Your Honox.
25 Nevada Earlthntervention? . - 25
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1 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 1 A she w&“)&ing transported by the Luceros.
2 BY MR. GERBER: 2 Q oOkay. Has there anybody -- has there ever been
3 Q During the exchanges, how frequent is Paisley 3 2 time when Paisley has arrived at your home or acted
4 upset when she arrives at your house? 4 out while she's being brought with Maria?
5 A Uhm, thoro was the one time that she was 5 A DNo.
6 screaming in the driveway. and there was one other 6 Q since the ex parte motion was granted by this
7 tima. And I want to say one or two more times. And 7 court and the 50/50 visitation stopped, and the McGrews
8 that's it. 8 only got the visitation on the weekends, has there been
9 Q Okay. And so are you saying that more often 9 a change -- a change in the way that the Luceros
10 than not, she is not upset when she arrives at your 10 .exchange Paisley?
11 nouse? 1 A I have no idea, because that does not take
12 A Yes. } 12 place in my house. ,
13 Q oOkay. You heard Ms. Goddard testify earlier 13 Q oOkay. So you haven't been able to witness
14 this morning, correct? 14 those exchanges anymore?
15 A Yes. 15 A No, I have not.
16 Q And did you hear her state that it was her 16 Q okay. Has your relationship with Pamela Lucero
17 belief that the excha.nges, that Paisley was more often 17 always been the same than it is today?
18 than not upset, that she was more frequently upset than 18 A No.
19 not upset? 19 Q oOkay. Early on in the case, or early on with
20 A  Yas. I did hear that. 20 carter, did Pamela have a different attitude toward
21 Q You've been able to personally cbserve those 21  you?
22 exchanges, correct? 22 A No.
23 A Yes. , 23 Q oOkay. So how has it changed, if it has
24 Q what is the truth? I mean, is she more changed?
25 frequently upset, or not upset? 25 A  Pamela and I ware talking every day when I
PAGE 243 PAGE 245
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1 A Well, I know Pamela has told me that Paislay 1 wasn't.working. Once I went back to work, that was a
2 will cry and make herself sick and not want to come, 2 different story. I was working. I would come home. I
3 but she still comas. 3 would go to bad. I would gat up and go back to work.
4 Q okay. Or what did you actually observe? 4 1 mean, I was at work two hours early every day.
5 A But she's not crying -- she's not orying when 5 Q _oOkay. And what time frame was that? What
6 she gats, you know, inside the house. 6 year? Or how long ago? .
7 Q oOkay. Do you believe that Paisley is sick or 7 A I want to say probably up to two years ago.
8 that -- that she's upset when you don't witness it? ] Q Okay. Was there a time —-
9 A I can't that, becausa I h 't 9 A But it could have been longer.
10 witnessed it. 10 Q Was there a time when Pamela Lucero treated you
11 Q 1It's only what you've been told by 41 with less respect than she treats you now?
42 pamela Lucero, correct? 12 A wo.
13 A Yeah, Yes. 13 Q okay. It's always been the same that way?
14 Q But what you've personally observed is that 14 A It's always baen tha same.
15 paisley is, I think you said, mostly happy yesterday, 15 Q oOkay. Has there been a time when she's treated
16 right? 16 Maria with more respect than she treats her now?
17 A Yes. 17 A I cantt -- I don't -~
18 Q S0 you ~- and when she does ‘come upset, she 18 Q oOkay. You haven't been able to gauge that?
L) quickly readjusts and redirects once she's in -~ 1 A No, I haven't.
20 A Yes, . . 20 Q oxay.
21 Q -- your home or when Maria arrives, correct? 21 A I don't think that thae relationship between
22 A Yes. Yes. 22 Maria and Pamela hava changed. '
23 Q 1Is -- on those occasions when she's come to 23 Q so are you saying it's always been a strained
24 your house upset, was she being transported by the relationship?
25 Luceros or by Maria McGrew? 25 A Yes. Up until the last two visits, Maria was
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1 Sstowing up and Granny would be t-.hsc:"é{ and there would 1 wanted to bri?ﬁ’ 9 toy from Granny's and that she
2 boe no problem. And then — other than Pamela waiting 2 couldn't. And she wants to take a toy from my house,
3 on the strest for mtia: to leave. And then she would 3 or from Maria's house and bring it over. And I have no
.4 pul‘;}. in. ' t N 4 problem with Paisley taking a toy from my house and
5 Q Was there a t;.me when -- when they wera 5 going to Maria's with it.
8 communicating better? -] MR. GERBER: Okay. All right. I have no
-7 A I would have to say, yes. Uhm, I want to say 7 further questions.
8 bafore TJ's doath, I think they wera getting along 8 Thank you, Your Honor.
9 oksy, but not perfact. 9 THE COURT: Ms. Amens, cross examine --
10 Q Did -- did things seem to improve before the ex |10 recross. )
11 parte motion was filed? Were they on better 1" MS. AMENS: Yes, Your H'onor.
12 communication? Or I understand there may have been 12
13 some exchanges that did not occur at your'house, 13 , RECROSS EXAMINATION
14 because they were on better terms; is that true? 14 B.Y MS. AMENS: ’
15 A No. ' 15 . Q - Mr. Gerber was asking you about whether or not
16 Q They always occurred at your house? 18 there was a time, uhm, and I think he was trying --
17 A Yes. Or at the Shall Station. 17 just before the ex parte motion where there was maybe a
18 ' Q Okay. And regarding that incident where you 18 1ittle better communication between Ms. McGrew and the
19 said that Paisley was screaming in-the driveway -- 19 Luceros.
20 A VYes. 20 What happened on Mother's Day?
21 Q -- you also testified that someone was yelling. 21 A on t:totba.r's Day?
22 ho was yelling? 22 Q Of this year. Were you involved with these
23 A  Paxela. ) 23 parties?
24 Q Okay. So Paisley was screaming, Pamela was 24 A Yes, I wvas. Uhm, I had asked Granny if -- I'm
25 yelling? ; 25 sorry, Pamela Lucaero if Kristin would love to have the
PAGE 247 PAGE 249 '
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1 A  Pamela was yelling at Kevin to coma get this —— 1 kida on Mother's Day. I had not talked to Maria yet.
2 to come gat Carter so I could help with Paisley 2 Q oOokay.
3 because of the oxygew.;evel_s and evarything.’ And Kevin 3 A Granny, or Pamela, said that would be-awesome.
4 just yalled, Paisley, because I had told Paisley that 4 Q oOkay.
5 Kovin was home. And once they got her inside, Kevin 5 A So when Maria showed up, I had brought -~ told
6 asked her to come in to his room, the door was cpened. 6 her what I had done. And I said for four hours. And
7 And he sat down and he said, Tell me why you're 7 the kids wore picked up, or Maria had taken the kids
8 so upgset. And she told him bacause she wanted to 8 over. I can't remember. I want to say they were
9 bring -- 9 picked up. I could be wrong. And they went to -- back
10 MS. AMENS: Objection. 10 to the Lucaros home. And at two o'clock they were
11 THE COURT: Sustained. 11 back. I mean, I had no problem with Kristin sceing the
12 MS. AMENS: Hearsay. 12  kids on Mother's Day.
13 THE COURT: That's hearsay. Sustained. 13 Q. okay.
14 Q BY MR. GERBER: Did you hear what was said? 14 A Because it is Mother's Day.
15 A Yes, I did. The bedroom door was open. I was 15 Q Dbid Ms. Lucero -- did Ms. Lucero bring flowers?
16 standing right there. 16 A  Yes, sha did. Tha night before.
17 Q And what was said? 17 Q Okay. To -- to you?
18 MS. AMENS: Objection. It's still hearsay. 18 . A- I got flowers.
19 THE COURT: It is still hearsay, but you've all 19 Q Okay.
20 been eliciting hearsay of what Paisley has said . |20 A  And Maria got flowars.
21 throughout the whole hearing, so I'm going to overrule 21 Q oOkay. 2And at that point, were they
22 the objection. If some of it is coming in, it's all 22 communicating bettér, Ms. McGrew and -~ or were they
23 coming in. 23 still contentious?
24 So go ahead. You can answer the gquestion. 24 A I would say they were communicating bett‘et.
25 THE WITNESS: She had told Kevin that she had 25 Q And that -~ you had said that there were a
PAGE 248 PAGE250  A_-A0089
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1 couple of visits, uhm, before tia~ex parte where things 1 1last two year\s"is when this guardianship has been in

2 were getting better, correct? 2 place. So about how many times has he gone to see

3 A VYes. 3 br. Deguzman? i
4 Q oOkay. Did you see a change in Paisley during 4 A Every time he needed shots. He was goix;g for

5 that period of time? § ©his shots. Ha has had no reason for me to take him in

6 A When things were getting better? 6 on an emsrgency. .

7 Q yeah. 7 Q okay. So --

8 A  Yeah. Paisley is always happy. Sha's always 8 A 80 I would say just for well baby visits.

9 boean happy. There's -- there's not a day that == 9 Q oOkay. Did you advise the Luceros that he had
40 there's been no charge in her. 10 medical appointments?

1 Q oOkay. You said that you had seen some 11 A 1 don't recall if I did or not.
12 exchanges where she was screaming. . 12 Q Okay.
13 A  Right, 13 A I make all of his appointments on the week that
14 Q Yeah. 14 1 have him,
15 How long are you involved in these exchanges? 15 Q Okay. An\d you don’t -~ it's not a common
16 I mean, you've been -- you volunteered to do this, and 16 practice that you would share that information with --
17 it's been great. But how much of a time period are you |17 A I don't pick up the phone and say, Carter has
18 with Paisley and Carter? 18 got a doctor's appointment tocday, if that's what you'ze
19 A FPive minutes. 19 asking me. No, I don't do that. . . (
20 Q okxay. So -- 20 Q And you don't give kind of a report of what
21 A I will text Maria and say, Kids are here. And 21 happened, or how he's doing?
22 she heads ovar to the house, or she's already on her 22 A No. I might tell her, he bad shots today and
23 way. 23 this is what he weighed.
24 Q oOkay. So at no point normally, uhm, were 24 /Q oOxay. All right. It sounds like he's a pretty
25 the -- Ms. Lucero and Ms. McGrew at the exchanges at |25 nhealthy child? ' )

PAGE 251 PAGE 253
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1 the sama time? 1 A He iz a very healthy child, very stubborn, got

2 A No. Thera's been a couple of times they weze 2 the attitudae, everything.

3 at the exchanges at the same time, and they waze 3 MS. AMENS: Okay. I don't have any further

4 gotting along great. They were standing in the 4 questions.

5 driveway. My husband, I, Maria and Pamela wera all in 5 THE COURT: Ms. Stone, do you have any

6 the driveway. I balieve Carter was in the back of the 6 questions for this witness?

7 pickup. And wa were all standing there ta]’.king. 7 MS. STONE: No.

8 Q okay. All right. And so that -- is it after 8 THE COURT: Ms. Rodriguez'? )

9 Mother's Day? So around June, is that what we're 9 MS. RODRIGUEZ: No, Judge. Thank you. \
10 talking about? Do you recall? 10 THE COURT: Thank you. Oh, I have a question
11 A I don't recall what date it was. 11  for you. ’ . ’

12 Q oOkay. So when Paisldy is coming back from 12 EXAMINATION L

13 Ms. McGrew's, is she excited to see Carter? 13 BY THE COURT:

14 A Yes. 14 Q You're on oxygen.

15 Q And do they have an opportunity, then, to —— to |18 A Yes; I am.

16 play a little bit before the, uhm -- 16 Q And you _seem kin;l of frail to me. I don't know
17 A  Before they leave? 17 if you are.

18 Q -- before the Luceros come and pick them up? 18 A rNo.

19 A Yas. 19 Q Do you have the health to chase after this busy
20 Q And does it work the same way when the Luceros 20 1ictle boy?

21. are dropping them off, do Carter and Paisley -- are 21 K Oh, yes.

22 they still playing togethe;? 22 THE COURT: Okay. Anything on that, anyone?
23 A Yes. B 23 MR. GERBER: No, Your Honor.

24 Q oOkay. Okay. So when you took Carter to 24 MS. AMENS: I have one gquestion.

25 pr. Deguzman, how many times have you taken him? The 25
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1 RECROSS EXAMINA “1611 1 Pleasé~State and spell your name.
2 BY MS. AMENS: 2 THE WITNESS: Donald Ferguson. The common
3 Q You had kind of talked about how, uhm, you 3 spelling on “Donald."
4 circled the house and run after Carter. I'm not sure I 4 THE COURT: Yes.
5 totally could visualize it. But is it related -- is it 5 THE WITNESS: F-e-r-g-u-s-o-n. N
6 related to the oxygen tank? 6 THE COURT: Go ahead, Mr. Gerber.
7 A Yes -- 7 MR. GERBER: Thank you.
8 Q The hose? 8
9 A Yes. I hava an oxygen concentrator at home. I 9 DONALD FERGUSON,
10 nave a 50-foot cord. And then I have another 25-foot 10 the witness herein, being first duly sworn, testified
11 cord on top of that. And we go from rocom to roem to 11 as follows:
12 zoom to rocm, and to the garage. 12
13 Q okay. 13 DIRECT EXAMINATION
14 A He will help me take the trash out. He loves 14 BY MR. GERBER:
45 to help take the dishas out of the dishwasher when 15 Q Mr. Ferguson, you filed a Petition in this
16 they're dirty instead of clean. Wa go in, and we play 16 matter for general guardianship of Carter, correct?
17  in his roem. 17 A Yes.
18 Q Okay. And then you're able to get outside when |18 Q ~And is it your position that you would like
118 he's -- 19 general guardianship of your grandson?
20 A Yes, I am. 20 A Yes.
21 Q -~ in the backyard or the front yard? 21 Q Uhm, you've heard your wife testify?
22 A I have this tank and another tank that's on 22 A Yaes. .
23 vheels. 23 Q And in the interest of time, do you agree with
24 MS. AMENS: All right. ©No further questions. 24 he;: testimony of. the things that she's testified to?
25 THE COURT: Thank you. You may step down. 25 A Yes.
* PAGE 255 PAGE 257
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1 THE WITNESS: Thank you. 1 Q oOkay. And one of the things that she said that
2 (The witness left the stand.) 2 the Court commented on that your wife is willing to
3 THE COURT: Before we call the next witness, 3 share one week on/one week off with the Luceros,
4 Mr. Bailiff, will you see what's happening with our 4 correct?
5 two o'clock case outside? Ms. Cavanaugh-Bill and Mr. 5 A Yesn.
© 1Loreman are the attorneys. 6 Q But to be clear, you would like a general
7 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Ms. Cavanaugh-Bill was going 7 guardianship, meaning you would be in charge of
8 next door, I believe. 8 dacisions, but the Luceros could share visitation?
9 THE COURT: In the other courtrocom? 9 A Yes, sir.
10 MS. RODRIGUEZ: She told me at noon she was 10 Q oOkay. Then why do you think that that would be
|11 over there still, 11 in carter's best interest?
12 THE COURT: Okay. 12 A  I'm starting to work with him on strength and
13 THE BAILIFF: Ms. Cavanaugh-Bill is next door 13 averything. We're doing little hikes together. I've
14 still. I haven't had a chance to talk to her. She's 14 seen him starting to lock at little problems and
15 'in Kacin's courtroom. . 15 resolve them. And so -- and ha holps when I'm working
16 THE COURT: All right. Call your next witness, |16 on little projects. He'll come out and be out there
17 Mr. Gerber, please. 17 with me and watching.
18 MR. GERBER: I call Don Ferguson, please. 18 Q oOkay. With regard to parenting, is there --
19 THE COURT: Please come forward. 19 have you observed the different parenting style between
20 The balliff's employment agreement says “othaer 20 your household and the Lucero household?
21 duties as assigned.” He didn't know that it was going 21 A I can't say I did, bacause I don't know how
22 to mean this. 22 they parent over there. I've never been over there.
23 Please raise your right hand. 23 Q Okay. ;Jhm, you're testifying as to some of the
24 {Witness sworn.) 24 activities that you do with Carter; is that right?
25 THE COURT: You may have a seat. 25 A Yes.
PAGE 256 PacE268  A-A0091
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1 Q Are you -- are you able\ t‘o/ keep up with him and 1 A Yes.
2 to raise him as a grandson —- 2 Q oOkay. And do you work to encourage positive
3 A Yes. 3 communication? '
4 Q -- in your custody? 4 A I personally don't.
5 And are you able to provide for his needs, 5 Q' And why do you say you don't? -
6 emotionally, financially, medically, and otherwise? 6 A  Bacause like -- usually when it goas down, I'm
7 A Yes. 7 either in the house wif:!; tha kids and they stay
8 .Q Do you now carry insurance on him through your 8 outside. 4 )
9 employment? g Q so you're usually not the one interacting,
10 A Yes. 10 you're saying?
1" MR. GERBER: And, Your Honor, we stipulated to |11 A Right. N
12 the petition. I don't think I have to go in to all of 12 Q But when you do have a chance to either
13 the specifics. So if -- if ‘we -- the statutory ‘1'3 encourage good behavior or bad behav'i.or, what do you -~
14 requirements. 14 which side do you like to encourage?
15 THE COURT: You do not. 15 A I would like to encourage the good behavior. -
16 MR. GERBER: Okay. So I would submit the 16 MR, GERBER: I have no further questions of
17 petition, Your Honox. 17 this witness at this time, Your Honor.
18 Q BY MR. GERBER’: Have you had a chancé to 18 ‘THE COURT: Crt\)ss examine, Ms. Amens.
19 witness the exchanges between the Luceros and -- in 19 MS. AMENS: Yes, Your Honor. ~
20 your home and with with the McGrews? 20 .
21 A Yes. A few. 21
22 Q Okay. What have you witnessed in those 22
23 exclanges? 23
24 A I've witnessed where the kids would come in and 24
25 play while the exchange is being taken place. Uhm, 25
PAGE 259 PAGE 281
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1 1ike Vicky was saying, I did witness that Maria and 1 CROSS EXAMINATION ¢
2 pPamela ware out there in cur driveway having a 2 BY MS. AMENS:
3 conversation, a civil conversation. 3 Q So it sounded like you would like to encourage
4 Q was that unusual? 4 good behavior, but you have not really been there. So
5 A  That was the one time I do racall. 5 it's not really kind of been ret] to you; is that a
6 Q oOkay. So it would be unus;xal for them to be 6 fair --
7 able to speak on civil terms? 7 A Yes.
8 A I don't want to say umusual, but that's the 8 Q okay. And so you've also not seen interactions
9 one -- one time that I can really say that I saw them 9 that have been negative. You just haven't seen
10 being ocivil with each other. 10 interactions, other than this one time that they were
1 Q Okay. Was that refreshing to you? 11 all together; is that --
12 A No -- what do you mean by “rafrashing"? 12 A Yes. .
13 Q Dpid you find that to be a positive sign that 13 Q .Okay. Uhm, and usually when these exchanges
14 they could communicate? 14 occur, you're staying in the house, and the kids run
15 A Yes. Yas. 45 in, or come in, and they're playing together?
16 Q Dpid that -- you said you only saw it one time, 16 A Yes. '
47 though? 17 Q And that would go both ways; is that right?
18 A mig. 18 A ves. )
19 Q bid you see it happen any more? 19 Q Are the two children closely bonded?
20 A I can't recall totally., Because there's been 20 A 2As far as I can see, yes.
21 times that I'll be at work when the exchanges go down. 21 Q oOkay. There's a big sister/little brother. Do
22 Q 1Is that something that you would encourage to 22 you see conflict between-them ever, or is it --
23 happen more? 23 A Just the typical sister/brother conflicts <
24 A Yes. 24 Q okay.
25 Q Positive communications? 25 A  -- you know, botwaen siblings like that.
PAGE 260 PAGEZ62 _ A-A (0092
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1 Q oOkay. Like who's playing with what toy, that 1 together?

2 type of thing? 2 A Two different departments, two different

3 A  You've got that toy, and I want to play with 3 divisions.
"4 ie. No, I'm playing with it, type of deal. 4 Q okay. So you didn't work -- okay.

5 Q So doas Carta;: have any other siblings? 5 A He workaed in -- on the surface, and I worked

6 A  That's the only one I know of. 6 for the undarground.

7 Q oOkay. All right. Nobody -- Kevin doesn't have 7 Q ' Okay. All right.. So it's not something where

8 any other kids? 8 you had a work relationship, as well?

9 A No. 9 A No. We would never see each other.

10 Q oOkay. Unm, so you indicated that, uhm, you're 10 Q oOkay. So the reason you know the Luceros is
11  fine with the current visitation arrangement. That 11 related to Carter; is that right?

12 seems to be in —- in Carter's best interest? 12 A  And mainly through Kevin.
13 A Yes. 13 Q oOkay. All right. I remember there was some
14 Q okay. He likes going to your place, he likes 14 testimony from Ms. Ferguson that Carter lived with you
15 going to theirs? 15 for two years. ' Was she referring to the guardianship
16 A As far as I can tell, yes. 16 time, or.: wés there a pericd of time that Kristin lived
17 Q Okay. And then Mr. Gerber was asking you why 17 at your house? A

18 you had wanted to maintain the guardianship. And you 18 A I think what she was referring to was that

19 indicated that you were working with him on some 19 period of time when she was living there at the housa.
20 strength issues, and he helps you with the projects 20 Q And how long was that? Was it two years? How
21 around the house. 21 old is Carter?

22 Why -- why would that have to change if you 22 A He was still an infant at the time.

23 continued to share co-guardianship? 23 Q okay.

24 A This way we can be more atabla. 24 A  And I can't remember exactly how long.

25 Q More stable? 25 . Q oOkay. All right. You don't know if it was a

PAGE 263 PAGE 265
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1 A Yeah. 1 couple of m;nths? _You don't know?

2 Q Has -- 2 A I can't recall exactly how long. :

3 A More consistent. ' 3 MS. AMENS: Okay. I don't have any further

4 Q More consistent? 4 questions. i

5 A Yes. 5 THE COURT: Ms. Stone, do you have any

6 Q oOkay. Over the last two years, you have, uhm, 6 q/ues:ions for this witness?

7 shared guardianship. Has there been instability as to 7 MS. STONE: No, I don't.

8 carter? 8 THE COURT: Ms. Rodriguez?

9 A  Not until hore recently, when wa have started 9

10 to do these little hikes, and I'm seeing whare ha's 10 CROSS EXAMINATION

11 stopping to -- he sees a little problem, and ha's 11 BY MS. RODRIGUEZ:

12 stopping and thinking about how to resolve it. And I 12 .Q Mr. Ferguson, in your Petition, do you recall
13  would like to work with him more on that. 13 why you alleged Ms. Stone cannot parent her son, why
14 Q oOkay. So are -- are you saying that you need 14 this guardianship is nacessary?

15 more time with him than the week on/week off? Is that 15 A It's that message that my wife Vicky received,
16  wnhat you're -- 16 stating basically -~ I was under the impressicn she was
17 A I still think the week on/week off would work. 17 going to California.

18 ‘But this is just one little thing I'm trying to work 18 Q That Kristin was going to California?

19  with him on. : 19 A  Yeah, that Kristin was going to California and
20 Q Okay. Do you get along with the Luceros? 20 that she wanted us to take care of him.
21 A Yas. 21 ~ Q  since you've had the co~-guardianship with the
22 Q Okay. How long have you known -- ‘how long have 22 Luceros, the temporary co-guardianship, has -- has
23 you known Mr. Lucero, Michael? 23 Kristin taken an active role in Carter's life, that you
24 A Three, four years, if not langer. 24 know of? ’
25 .Q Okay. And did I understand that you worked 25 A No.

PAGE265 _ A-A(093

21 of 49 sheets

Page 263 to 266 of 375

10/18/2021 11:54:54 AM



PAGE 268

(5 O
1 Q Has she contacted you comBerning his 1 Q Based Ufon your experience with Kristin, do you
2 well-being? 2 believe she's capable of parenting Carter at this time?
3 A  She has shown up once late -~ late at night. I 3 A At this time, no.
4 want to say it was 10:60, elaeven o'clock. It might 4 Q Is it your desire that Kriqtin someday' ratake
8 have been later, wanting to sco him. Raecaugse he was 5 custody of Carter? )
6 put down for the night, he was asleep, we sat on the 6 A When she's able to provida for him in a stable
7 front porch and talked to her. 7 homa, 'yes.
8 Q Okay. Do you remember approximately when that 8 Q Do you have any knowledge as to whether or not
9 was? 9 Kristin is using any kind of illegal drugs at this
10 . A I want to say it was in kinda the late fall, 10  time?
11 because it was kinda chilly out that night. But I 1" A At this time, no.
12 can't remember of what year. 12 Q Do you have concerns for that behavior?
13 Q To the best of your knowledge, where has 13 A Yas. ’
14 Kristin resided since this guardianship began? 14 Q what do you basae those concerns upon?
15 A I really don't know. All I can say is what I 1 ' A what do you mean? .
16 heard, but I really don't know. 16 Q What do you base your concerns about Kristin's
17 Q To the best of your knowledge, has Kristin - 17 use of illegal substances on?
18 does she have any way of providing for Carter's needs? 18 A. Well, my concerns is sho's on -- doing any type
19 A As far as I know, no. 19 ot substance, then she wouldn't be in the corract state
20 Q Your wife testified briefly that at one point 20  of mind to take care of a child. ’
21 Kristin and Carter were residing with you. 21 Q Okay. You learned yesterday that your son was
22 A Yes. 22 using drugs again, correct? '
23 Q Do you recall when that was? 23 A Yes.
24 A About the tima that he was born. 24 ‘Q Prior to yesteréay, you had been allowing --
'25 Q And do you recall approximately how long 25 well, excuse me. Had you been allowing unsupervised
PAGE 267 PAGE 269
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1 Kristin and Carter resided with you? 1 contact with Carter and your son, Kevin?
2 A I can't recall. 2 ‘A No. Usually when Carter is there, Vicky or I -
3 Q ‘During the time that you've known Kristin, have 3 are always right there. ;
4 you ever known her to have her own residence? 4 Q Okay. Would you be willing to allow Kristin to
5 A No. § have contact with Carter, as well, 1n a supeivisad
"6 Q During the time that S{ou've known her, have you 6 settling, as you.are allowing your son? Excuse me.
7 known her to have a full-time occupation? 7 A Yas.
8 A once. 8 Q Do you have dny concerns for Carter's health,
9 Q Do you recall when that was? 9 physica]: health?
10 A 1t vas before Carter was born, and she was 10 A At this tima, no.
11  werking at Domino's Pizza there in Spring cteak 11 Q Did you have concerns for his physical health?
12 Q Since Caxter has been born, have you known 12 A Just when we first started trying get him
13 Kristin to have a full-time job?’ 13 caught up on his shot records. )
14 A  As far as I know, no. 14 Q okay. Do you have any concerns for Carter's
15 Q During the time that Carter has been in your 15 mental health at this time?’
16 care, has Kristin offersd to provide for any of his 16 A Yas.
17 support or needs, to the best of your knowledge? 17 Q wWhat -- what are those concerns?
18 A No. . 18 A As far as I can see for ri:g’kit now, I'm not 100
19 Q During the time that Carter has been in thl*ls 19 percent sure, but he's kind of €alling in Kevin's
20 guardianship, and specifically when he's been at your 20 footsteps with ADED, .
21 home, has Kristin reached out to try and have phone 21 Q So Kevin was diagnosed with ADHD as a child?
22 conversations with him, phone contact, any contact with 22 A’ Yes.
23 him, other than the one'time where she came over 23 Q so do.you know the signs of ADHD based upon
24 Dpotween 10:00 and 11:00 p.m.? 24 Kevin's historic diagnosis?
25 A r. 25

A A little bit.
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1 Q Are you willing to foliMftrough with any type 1 MARIA MCGREW,
2 of assessment that may be recommended for Carter -- 2 the gitness herein, being first duly sworn, testified
3 recommended, excuse me, for Carter as he grows and 3 as follows:
4 follow any type of requirements for him regarding ADHD 4 )
5 or other diagnoses? 5 - DIRECT EXAMINATION -
6 A Yes. Uhm, I'm basing that infozmation off of 6 BY MR. GERBER:
7 what I learned. 7 Q Ms. McGrew, you testified previously in this
8 Q With Kevin? 8 matter, about two years ago, correct?
9 A From Kevin when he was_in preschool. 9 A Yes.
10 Q okay. Now that you know that there has been a 10 Q And since that time, you've been appointed as
11 Nevada Early Intervention assessment for Carter, are 11 the co-guardian of Paisley, correct? '
12 you going to follow up with NIA to see what their 12 A Yes. . .
13 recommendations were? 13 Q And I know there's been a lot happening and a
14 A Yes. BAs soon as wa can get the contact 14 1ot to go through, but I'm just gonna try to get
15 information. 45 some -- some of the more relevant points in this case
16 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Okay. Thank you. 16 to present to the Court. ' '
17 THE COURT: Redirect? 17 when Paisley was enrolled in school, what
18 MR. GERBER: I have no further questions, Your |18 school was she enrolled in? B
19 Honor. h] 19 A  Sage. The preschool program through -- or at
20 THE COURT: Thank you. You may step down. ‘120 sage.
21 THE WITNESS: Thank you. _ 21 Q sage Elementary in Spring Creek?
22 (The witness left the stand.) - 22 A Yes.
23 THE COURT: Did Mr. Loreman's client show up? 23 Q And you were a co-guardian at the time,
24 THE BAILIFF: Yes, Your Honor. 24 correct? .
25 THE COURT: All right. We're gonna take a 25 A Yes. ¢
PAGE 271 ) PAGE 273
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1 recess, but we are going to go until 5:00. So, 1 Q Had the Court ordered you and t;\e Lucerxos to
2 Mr. Bailiff, will you tell those parties to come back 2 cooperate and share 1nfozmation. regarding Paisley?
3 at 5:00 and hear their case at 5:00? 3 A Yas, N
4 THE BAILIFF: And back at 5:00? 4 Q Who registered Paisley for school?
5 . THE COURT: Yeah. They can hang around if they 5 A Pamela Lucero.
6 want, but they can leave and come back at 5:00. 6 Q Dpid you ask to be apart of that registration?
7 THE BAILIFF: Okay. And we'll get their case 7 A | I was initially asked if I would be willing for
' 8 done at 5:007 ' 8 hor to go to preschool, and I said yes. And I asked
9 THE COURT: Yes. . 9 that I would like to know what school, the days, the
10 - {Recess.) 10 hours, any costs incurred, and did not receive a
1" THE COURT: Your next witness, Mr. Gerber? 1" response until -- I got that requeat in late June,
12 MR. GERSBER: I call Maria McGrew. 12 early July, did not receive a responsa to that request
13 THE COURT: Come forward, please. 13\ until, like, the second week of August.
14 (Witness sworn.) 14 Q Ok.ay. And by that time, had she already been
15 THE COURT: Please state and spell your name. 15 registered? ' ;
16 THE WITNESS: Maria McGrew. M-a-r-i-a. 16 ~ A Yes. )
17 M-c-G-r-e-w. 17 Q oOkay. And did you go to the school to -~ at
18 ' THE COURT: Thank you. ‘18 any point to present yourself as a co-guardian?
19 Go ahead, Ms. Ferguson. 19 A I actually, b I had not yet been told
20 MR. GERBER: Thank you, Your Honox 20 which scheol she was going to bha going to, uhm, I
21 21 actually went first to the new school, Liberty Peak in
22 22 spring Creek to see if she had beon enrolled there, and
23 23  they didn't have her anywhore in their system.
24 24 So-then I went over to 8age. And, yes, they
25 , 25 aid nave her enrolled. And I had brought our
PAGE 272 , ~ PAGE274 A _A (095
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1 co-guardianship papers with us and asked about her 1 Q' Has tﬁE{intert‘ered with your ability to'accesn

2 enrollment. ‘And they said, yes, that she was enrolled. 2 health -~ or health care for Paisley?

3 And I introduced myael'f as her grandmother. And they 3 A It means that any health care that we access

4 said, Oh, yes, we have you listed down as other 4 for her is paid out-of-pocket.

5 emergency contact. L] Q And do you actually pay out-of-pocket for her

6 And so I explained to them, Well, I'm not just 6 health care? '

7 her other emergency contact, we are actually in a 7 A . Yes.

8 co-guardianship agreemant, and she is with me 8 Q Would you ask that the Luceros provide her

9 physically every other week for a week. And I 9 Ssocial Security number during this proceeding?

10 prasented them with a oopy'of the gqa:diauship papers 10 A Yes, I would. Her Social Security number, and
11  and got that whole situation straightenad out so that 11 also a copy of har birth certificate. Wa don't have
12 she can be entered in to their system as being in two 12 that either, which would also praveat ma from enrolling
13 households, since her actual physical custody 13 her in school, or in any extracurricular sports
14 alternated week to weak. 14 activities that the County may offer.
15 Q when the Luceros had her registered, was she 15 Q Have you asked for a copy of her birth
16 only registered under the Luceros' household? 16 certificate?
17 A VYes. ' 17 ‘A I beliave that when we requested tha Social
18 Q Let's talk about insurance. Does -- who is -- 18 Security nuzber, we alsoc asked for a copy of the birth
19 whose insurance is Paisley listed under right now? 19 certificate.
20 A I believe she's listed under Michael Lucero's 20 Q Do you believe that withholding that
21 insurance. 21 information is .:Lntem:ional to prevent you from
22 Q Have you asked for them to provide that 22 co-parenting or .acting as a co-guardian of i’aisley?
23 insurance information? 23 A I do. Yes, I do.
24 A  First I asked for them to please provide 24 Q And has it materially affected your ability to
25 Paisley's Social Security number, so that when cpen 25 be a co-guardian?

PAGE275 PAGE 277.
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1 enzollment came up we may add her to John's insurance 1 A  say that again.

2 through the mines. RAnd I was told that they would talk 2 Q Has it materially affected your ability to be a

3  to their attorney about whether or not they should do 3 co-guardian?

4 that. And that was the last that I heard about it. 4 A In getting her insured and baing able to sign

5 Q Have they, to this date, ever provided you with 5 hor up for extracurricular activities, yes, absolutely.

6 Ppaisley's Social Security number? 6 Q Has there been a lack of cooperation from the

7 A No. 7 1luceros in providing cha;t information?

8 Q Did that prevent you from adding Paisley to 8 A Yes.

9 your husband, John's, insurance —- 9 Q Has Paisley, uhm -- uhm, has Paisley, uhm, said
10 A Yes. 10 anything about, uhm, you being mean, or something of
1 Q -- through Nevada Gold Mine? 11 that nature?

12 A VYes. 12 A  Between i‘ebzua:y and April of this year, uhm,
13 Q And even to this day, are you -- do you know 13 on one of the exchange days, aa -- after I got her
14 whether -- have you ever seaen any proof that Paisley is 14 buckled in to the car and got in the front seat and was
15  insured through the Luceros' insurance? 15 buckling myself and getting ready to back out of
16 A No. 16 Vicky's driveway, Paisley says to ma, just out of the
17 Q ° Have they informed you that she is? 47 blue, Granny said that if you're medn to me, we'll tell
18 A Yes. 18 Ms. Geri.
19 Q oOkay. Are you able to take -- are you able to 19 Q And that was during an exchange? ~
20 access the Luceros' insurance when you take Paisley to |20 A That was on an exchange day, yesh, '
21 the doctor? 121 Q One of the.first things she said to you when
22 A No. Not to my knowledga. 22 she got in the car?
23 Q And you've been prevented from adding Paisley 23 A Yeah. 4
24 o John'h insurance, correct? 24 THE COURT: Would you tell me again exactly
25 A Yes. |25 what she said?
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1 THE WITNESS: ' Granny saicT/ that if you're mean 1 Q &and w‘;.i'/it also your purpose to care for
2 to me, she will tell Ms. Ge;i. L] 2 paisley, so Paisley was in a safe and stable home?
3 THE COURT: Thank you. i 3 A It was my purpose that we offered our home so
4 Q BY MR. GERBER: And does that coincide with the | 4 that she and Paisley had a safe and stabla home, and  °
5 time that Paisley began counseling with Geri Goddard? 5 that she could be Paislay's mom and sare for her with
6 A She was already in counseling with Geri Goeddard 6 some additional help, should she need it, with my
7 at that timae, yas. ' 7 prasence being there, that I could coach her and help
8 Q Has Paisley said anything to you that would - 8 ker to be a mom.
9 cause you to believe that, uhm, Pamela Lucero is 9 Q 0id she accept your offer?
10 coaching her to -- to say things? 10 A Initially, yes.
| A well, I think that comment. The previous year 1" Q An\cl did she actually move in with you?
12 on an exchange day, when I was returning Paisley to 12 A No.
13 vicky's to ba picked up from the Luceros, on the drive 13 Q what happened that prevented her from moving in
14 over there, and Paisley was -- I don't balieve she 14 with ym{? a
15 was -~ she might have been just three at the tima, or 18 A s\he had a long conversation with hex r
16 =not quite three yet, said, It's not nice of you to take 16 grandfathar, and I beliave her ggandmntbaz. . 7
17 me away from Granny. 17 Q And who are they?
18 Q Do you believe that those comments were 18 A Michael and Pamala Lucezo.
19 generated from Paisley's own -- ) 1'9 Q And how éo you know that she had that
20 A I think given her age, that whather she's 20 conversation? -
21 either bean told directly something to that affect, or 21 A Because she text me and told me that plans had
22 she has overheard adults speaking in that manner. 22 changed. And after talking with her Papa, that she
23 Q oOkay. The uhm —- 23  decided to stay with them.
24 A  with regard to the comment about Ms. Gexi, I 24 Q And do you know if she has sought
25 believe sha was diraectly told if Nanny or Maria, I'm . 25 rehabilitation at any time since that conversation
PAGE 279 ' PAGE 281
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1 not sure how they actually refer to ma when speaking to 1 happened?
2 Ppaisley, but I.balieve she was directly told, if she's 2 A I don't personally know. I know that
3 mean to you, wa'll tell Ms. Geri. 3 M. I.uce:.o has stated that they'va taken her to
4 Q oOkay. Was that before thea ex parte motion was 4 something like 25 rehabilitation centers, and that
5 filed? i 5 she's walked out of avery sirgle one ]
'8 A Yes. 6 . Q And he's said that directly to you?
7 Q And -- okay. Let me ask you some guestions -7 A To myself -- he stated that in, ulin, the
8 about Kristin. The Court has asked for evidence 8 sessions that we've had wii:h Janell Anderson.
9 regarding her fitness. ' 9 Q okay. So just recently within the last month?
10 Do you believe that Kristin is a fit and proper |10 A Yes. ;
11 person to have the care 6f -- and control of Paisley? 11 Q Do you have any evidence that she has actually
112 A wo. ’ 12 over been enrolled in a rehabilitation facility or
13 Q And why not? 13 center? '
14 A To the best of my knowledge, Rristin is 14 A No. ‘ '
15 hozoless and unemployed. Uhm, to the baest .of my 15 Q Do 'you believe it is safe for Paisley to be in
16 knowledge, she is even without an ID or driver's 16 ner care 1f, she has never sought treatment for drugs?
17 1license; doesn't have the means to get herself to a 17 A No.
18 job, doesn't have a home that's the same all the time, 18 Q And you heard the testimony of Brenda
19 doesn't have a full-time job. 19 Kelley-Brace, correct?
20 Q Has she -- has Kristin admitted to you t:hat{ 20 A Yes.
121 she's used methamphetamines? 21 Q The caseworker.
22 A  Yes, in the past sha has. 22 . A VYes.
23 Q And at some time, did you offer for her to live .23 Q when Brenda Kelley-Brace was in your home for
24 with you so that she could be rehabilitated? ‘24 her investigation, did she -- or did you show her a
25 A Yes. ’ 25 picture of what Kristin looked like?
PAGE 280 PAGE282 A-A0097
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1 A Yas. . 1 reqgular day, fof eating and meal times?
2 Q oOkay. And did -- did that allow the coworker 2 A When she wakes up in the morning, she likes to
3 to identify Kristin as a person who was presént in the 3 coma just sit with me for a little while on the couch
4 Lucero home? 4 and hang out. I ask her to take her pull-up off first
5 A VYes, 8 thing, so if it's wet, and it usually is, that she's
6 Q And did Kristin have a newborn baby at the 6 not sitting in it. And she does that and changes in to
7 time? i 7 clean undexwear, wait a little while.
8 A Frem what I was told, yes. 8 I'1l ask hex if she's hungry, or she'll tell me
9 Q And to your knowledge, does -- did Kristin give 9 she's hungry, and give hor some cptions for breakfast; '
10 birth to a baby this year? 10 eggs, cereal. Or I'll give her a coupla of different
11 A Yes, . 1 opticns. And sometimes she'll tell me, Well, I wan\t
12 Q Okay. Uhm, at the last he'ating, about two 12 i and ch , and I'm like, Wa're not having
13 years ago, you had presented Exhibit 2 that was entered |13 = i and ch 2 for breakfast, but you may have
14 in to evidence that was a weight chart that you . 14 some careal, or I can make you scme aggs, or we can do
15 prepared, correct? 15 some pancakas. And then she picks. And then she has
‘116 A Yes. 18 breakfast.
17 Q And this is something you prepared on your 17 And then depending on what we're doing that
18 computer, correct? 18 day, we might hang out in the hougse for a whilae, and
19 A VYes. 19 she can play in her jammies and/or get drassed. Or if
20 Q What was your purpose in preparing that chart? 20 ie's nice, like it has boon this summar, I have a
21 A Uhm, concerned -- I was concerned for Paislay's 21 couple of wading pools set out in the front yard, and
22 weight at that time at two years old and was monitoring 22 she will play all day in the water, all day.
23 it every week that I had her, because che seemed to be 23 We try to got lunch in nnywbe:; £rom 11:30 to
24 consistantly gaining. 24 12:30. try to get her down for-a nap around
25 Q And do you recall what Paisley's weight was two |25 one o'clock. And she usually will slaep for a goed two,
PAGE 283 PAGE 285
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1 years ago? 1 sometimas three hom.:s, have a good nap, get up, play
2 A It was 44 pounds, 2 some more, have dinner.
3 Q Okay. And what would be an average weight for 3 Sometimas in the evenings, a couple of nights
4 a four-year-old her height at this time? 4 in the evenings, before bedt:lme she and I will go
5 A Around 45 pounds. 5 downstairs and watch one of the kids shows that she
] Q And how much does she weigh today? 6 1ikes to v;atch for about an hour. If she needs a bath
7 A The last time that I weighed her at my home, 7 that day, then she gets bathed, We -- she gets bathed,
8 she weighed 74 pounds. 8 she toilets, we ge/t in jammies, brush teeth, read a
9 Q And what.percentile of growth would that be for 9 story, say prayers, and it's lights out.
10 hex age? 10 Q what is your regular dinnertime?
1 A  ‘When I look at the charts, it can't be charted: 11 A  We're trying -- I try to eat anywhere batween
12 Q Are you ctl)ncetned that she. is morbidly obese? 12 5:00 and 6:00. So dinner is ready when John gets home
13 A I am. 13 from work, around 5:00.
14 Q In meeting with Janell Anderéon, did Janell 14 Q And do you control portion size for Paisley,
15 Anderson have any recommendations about Paisley’s 15 when she's at your home?
16 weight? 16 A T do.
17 A We talked a little bit about tha weight and the 17 Q okay. Are there certain foods that you
48 eating, and Janell Anderson did cemment that thera is 18 completely try to avoid her consuming?
19 an importance for a toddler to have regular meals and 19 A I don't know about completely, but definitely
20 regular snacks that are healthy and appropriate for 20 with limits; gary ks, or ive b ds and
121 theiz age, not, 'you know, like breakfast, snack, lunch, 21 chips and fried foods. Uhm, if she ig really hungsy
22 snack, maybe another snack.and dinner; not just eat 22 ar;d wa'rze having, like, a fried food, then ~- and
23 whatever, whenaver. 23 she -- and I've given her an appropriata portion for
24 Q Okay. Can you give the Court an idea of how you 24 her age, and she says she wants seconds, I may offer )
25 care for Paislay when she's in your custody on a 25 ther first soconds of more of the salad, or moxe of thod
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1 {unintelligible) , which she loves. Sha lovas to eat 1 ) history for herT” I don't have any other med:l‘ua]., so I

2 choppad salads, She loves to eat her vegetables. And 2 don't know what care sho's already received while she's

3 she'll have second helpings of that. 3 been with then And so I don't want to harm her by

4 And then if she seems like she's really still 4 taking her somewhere else and having a double dosa of

5 hungry, then I'll offe;: har a small amount of whatever 5 somathing.

6 the main course was. 6 Q Has Pamela Lucero told you whether or not she's

7 Q . so you're consciel;ce of what she's eating? 7 taking Paisley to a doctor?

8 A Yas. 8 A Recently, in these couvo:sati.on.n with Janell

9 Q And are you tr.ying to control her weight gain 9 Anderson, she did say that she's been taking Paisley to
10 through those efforts? : 10 D=z. Hernandez, .that she had a whole diet workup done,
11 A I's certainly trying to keep her £rom gaining 11  that given the family's history and their physical
12 more waight. 12 makeup, that there was no concern for Paisley's weight,
13 Q Now, you've heard the testimony from Brenda 13  that she'll ocutgrow it.

44 Kelley-Brace that you've been accused of hiding food or |14 Q After hearing that, did you contact

15 starving Paisley? 15 bDz. Hernandez's office to find out when the last
16 A Yep. 16 appointment for Paisley was?
17 Q Is any of that true? 17 A I did call this week to f£ind out when the last
18 A 1o. 18 “time that Dr. Hernandesz had seen Paisley and to
19 Q Has ~- have you .heard Pamela Lucero describe 19 schedule a well child check £o_:" Paisley. And according
20 her parenting style of what Paisley can or cannot eat? 20 to Dr. Hernandez's nurse, Dx. Hernandez has not seen
21 A Tn our last session with Janell Andorson, 21 Paisley since -Dgoenbez of 2018, when X brought her 4in.
22 Pamela Lucero did make that comment that Paisley could 22 Q So those are some inconsistencies that you
23 eat whataever she wants at thair house. 23 can't reconcile without further information, right?
24 Q Do you believe that that's healthy for Paisley? |24 A Yes.
25 A  Neo. . b 25 Q Are you willing to cooperate with the Luceros

PAGE 287 PAGE 289
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1 Q And since the ex p.:arte order was entered by 1 in exchanging visits with Paisley?

2 this Court, you've been prevented from having Paisley 2 A  Absolutely. L

3 at your house for extended pericds, correct? 3 Q Dpid visitation seem to be getting better prior

4 A Yes. 4 to the ex parte motion being filed?

5 Q only, what, two days, or -- you've only had two 5 A  On April 27th, uhm, I got a phona call on, I

6 visits? 6 think it was the morning of the 27th. It might have

7 A Two weekends, July 10th through the 13th, and 7 been on the 26th. - I got a phone call from Pammy

8 July 14th through the 27th. 8 Lucero, it might have been a text message first. But

9 Q And were you able to measure Paisley's change 9 we did end up speaking on the phona, _asking if -- uhm,
10 in weight fr‘om the time you last saw her until -- 10 baecause that was the wesk that I had Paislaey and Vicky
1 A  From the last -- frém the time I -last saw her 11  had Carter, asking if we would mind if they had the
12 in June to the == to when I £inally g.ot to sea her 12 xids for four hours on the 27¢h, because it was
13 agai'.n in July, she had gained almost five pounds. 13 Rristin's birthday. And their ‘mom had just got out of
14 Q Is that a concern for you? ' 14 the hospital, thia was just befora g*;.ving birth to the
15 A A five-pound gain in a ‘month is the equivalent 15 1ittle girl she just had. She just got out of the
16 tc; what the CDC has averaged for a threa- to 16 hogpital, it was har birthday, and she would like to
17 - Pour-year-cld for a year. 17 aee hor kids,
18 Q Has Paisley been seen by any doctors during the |18 And I agreed, because this was just kind of
19 co-guardianship? ) 19 »right at the beginning of COVID, and with all the
20 A I took her to Dr. Hernandez in December of ~ 20 quarantining that they were having, that I agreed that
21 2018. I have not taken her again to the docterx, 21 1 was more coafon:abia with two hours. And that's -~
22 primarily the lack of the insurance card and becausa I 22 . uhm, I was happy to take both Paisley and Carter and
23 don't know who Pamela is taking her to. And I 23 drop them off at Pammy's. And then I would pick them
24 concerned for a negative overlap in that. I don't have 24 up. And so that's what happened. And since that time,
25 paisley's immunization :eco:dn I don't have health 25 communicatien between Pamela and I had been improving.
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1 Q oOkay. And so there was that one phone call. 1 e wit-.h their mom no mattar vhat it takes. She did
2 Are there other things that Pamela said to you, 2 comnant that Kristin will/never ba able to have her own
3 or in your presence, that indicated that she was being 3 house or bo on her own, that she will always need help, !
4 nmore communicative? 4 and that they are willing to provide that help for her.
5 A Well, 15 minutos after I droppad tho kids off, 5 But that they should —- that Kristin should ba able to
6 she called me back. She was really upset with Kristin. 6 be' a mem to al'l three of her kids.
7 Actually, Kristin called me {aack on Paxela's phonea to 7 Q 'i'ou belie?e that the Luceros are enabling or
8 tall mo that Granny was really upset with her because 8 causing Kristin -- Kristin to remain unfit as a parent?
9 she had just cut Paisley's hair. And I was, like, 9 MS. AMENS: Objection. Calls for spec --
40 okay. You cut her hair. Is it messed up? Or did you 10 spaculation. '
11 out it really short? Or vwhat happened exactly? 1 THE COURT: Yeah. That's sustained. .
12 And Kristin said, I just cut her braid off. I 12 Q BY MR. GERBER: Okay. Have you noticed any
13 had sent Paisley over in a single french braid. And 13 behaviors of the Luceros to enable} Kristin to remain at
14 she said, I just cut her braid off. And I was, like, 14 nome without providing for herself? .
15 okay. 15 A I think that as parents, when we continually
16 And then it soundad like Kristin was telling me 16  £ix our children's problems and not allow them to fully
17 that Granny was trying to fix the haircut, bacause 17 aexperience the consequences of choices that they make,
18 cbviocusly the braid -- if tha hair was in a braid, it 18 aspecially when they are adult children, that, yes, we
19 wvas going to be uneven. 8o I just told Kristin, I 19 enable them to stay in theose ‘hehaviors and to continue
20 said, it's not a big deal. 1It's hair. It will grow 20 making those same not-good choices.
21 back. I have a friend who is a licensed beauticiar, 21 Ccansequenées can often be uncomfortable, not
22 wa'll clean it up when I get her back. We'll take her 22 just for our children, but for us to watch them go
23  to her, wa'll clean it up, even it out, it will be 23 through. But, if they don't -~ somewhere a person has
£ine. 24 to dacide that this is not okay, and it's not good and
25 And then Pamela got on the phone with ma and 25 it peeds to stop and it needs to improve and it needs
PAGE 281 ' PAGE 293
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1 proceaded to vent about how upset she was and how 1 to change. And only an individual can decide that for
2 disrospected she felt by Kristir, that Kristin just did 2 themselves. And if somebody is fixing your problems,
3 that, and sha couldn't balieve she did that. 3 you'va got no reason to make that dacision.
4 And wa talked. I had an opportunity to -- to 4 Q what -- what grade will Paisley be in in tl:e
5 try to explain to her that I understand that -- that - § coming school year?
6 that there were things that she has been told by 6 A She will st:.ll be in praschool.
7 Kristin in the past about mo, about things that I may 7 Q oOkay. Why -- why is she/still in p:eschool?
8 have said, or ways that I may have acted, that Kristin 8 A She's four. She won't be five until next May.
9 prasentad in a way as to make Pamela feel bad about 9 Q will she start kindergarten the following year?
10 herself and how she was doing things. And I reassured 10 A  she should: yes.
J 11  Ppamela that in no way, shape, or form did I ever say 11 Q And this Court is faced with a question of
12 anything with that intention. : 12 where to place Paisley, in your home, in the Lucero
13 Anytime that I, in tha past, had gotten gifts 13 home, back with their mother, or some type of shared
14 or provided things for Paisley as an infant, or a 14 custody or visitation arrangement, correct?
15 one-year-old, or a two-year-old, such as diaspars or 15 A Yes. ,
16 wipes, it was not as a -- talking down or saying that 16 « Q What do you believe would be in Paisley's best
17 they couldn't provide, it's just because, well, I'm her 17 interest? o
18 grandmother, too, and I'm abla to do that and l.mlp. And 18 Q I believe that our home provides more, uhm,
19 1 do the same thing for my other grandkids. 18 stability and routine, consistency. Uhm, Paisley knows
20 And I wanted to reassure her that, you know, I 20 her‘boundaries, has clear boundaries, which gives her a
21 don't have -- I'm not comparing. I'm not in 21 sense of security and knows what to expect?
22 cempetition. I'm not comparing. 22 Q Do you think the Luceros could provide that
23 Pammy just expressed to me that her sole goal '23 same level of routine and stability?
24 is to get the children back with their mom, and that's 24 A I think anybody could, if they wanted to.
25 where they should ba, is that all three children should 25 1It's -- it takes -- it's hard work. It's a very
' PAGE 292 : : PAGE294  A-A0100
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1 intentional thing to do. And tod&..{s take a lot out 1 A ' No.

2 of you, and you have to ba very intentional to be 2 MR. GERBER: Okay. I have no further questions
] congigtent all the time, even whan you're tired and 3 at this time, Your Honor.

4 don't feel like it. 4 THE COURT: Cross examination, Ms. Amens.

5 Q All right. Have you observed a routine or any 5 MS. RMENS: Yes, Your Honor.

6 consistency in the Lucero home? 6

7 A  I'm not aware of any type of regular routine or 7 CROSS EXAMINATION

8 consistent -- consistency in their home. 8 BY MS. AMENS:

9 Q what have you observed about their home? .9 Q Ms. McGrew, I'm just going to start, like go
10 A  Umm, I feel that it's -- I think that the 10  through my notes.
11  younger kids just kind of gat to do whatever strikes 11 So Mr. Gerber had originally started asking you
12 them at the time. I think whatever they feel like. If 12 about preschool. Well, first off, maybe it would help,
13 they're -~ if they sea somebedy eating, and thay want 13 «kinda, us understand what's going on.

14 to eat. If they want to run around and play all day, 14 How do you communicate with the Luceros?

15 thay run around and play until -~ possibly until their 15 A I'don't, really.

16 ‘ body says, nope, we're done, and thoy fall asleep 16 Q oOkay. When you say that you've been asking for
17 wherever they stop to reat for a few minutes. 47 this information, how are you asking for this
18 Q Do you know if Paisley gets regular naps at the |18 information? i
19 Lucero home? 19 A I have asked for it in a toxt mossaga.
20 A To my knowledge, she does not- 20 Q oxay.
21 Q Are there teenagers and young adults living in 21 A Whaen I have received scue text messages £rom
22 the Lucero home? ‘22 hin asking, uhm - I think it was last fall, when she
23 A I know that Paisley’s Uncle Timmy lives thare. 23  asked -- actually, vhen she texted me and told me that
24 And since ho is a teenager, and I'm sure ha has 24 Michael and Paisley have appointments in Reno on, I
25 friends. I would say that, yes, there are teaenagers 25 think it was the 9th or 10th, and sha would coma pick

PAGE 295 PAGE 207
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1 that are in that home. 1 pPaisley up from me on tha Bth and return her on .the

2 Q oOkay. Are there any young adults in the house? 2 11th. And vhen I got that text messags, I was kind of

3 ‘A I'm not 100 percent certain. I know that 3 taken aback. It was my week. Paisley was already with

4 paisley's Aunt Laken, who I think is mayba 19, early 4 me. I wasn't really sure how to respond.

§ 20s, has or is living there. I know that Kristin is 5 I let Ms. Ferguson know, and I text Pam back,

6 somatimas thera. I know that Paisley has an Uncle 6 asking what the nature of these appointments were. And

7 Jason. I don't know how often ha's there. I don't 7 initially the response I got back was, Never mind,

8 think that ha lives there anymore. I think Paisley 8 we'll reschedule.

9  told me that Jason has his own house now, so... 9 And then there was communication batween myself
10 Q Have there been any children leave the Lucero 10 and Ms. Ferguson, and Ms. Ferguson and your office.
11  home on 'bad terms? 11 and finally it -- it got around to ma that the -- what
12 A I'mnot -- 12 the sppointments were for, counseling with Ms. Goddard,
13 Q Have there been any situations of runaway from 13 which I had -- that was the first time I had heard
14 the Lucero home to your knowledge? 14 about it. And so at that point, I was, lil;e, okay, not
15 A The year that this began, the Luceros' daughter 15 a problenm.
16 Alyssa left without their knowledge and was reported 16 That's when more information wag -- WeJ:J., can I
17 missing, and was gone for, I believe a year. 17 please have Ms. Goddard's contact information? Aand at
18 Q okay. And did she return to the Lucero home? 18 tha end of that text, I also asked for Paisley's Social
19 A To my knowledge, yes, she did leave —-- return 19 Security, so that we could enroll her in the insurance,
20 and she was in their home. 20 because cpen enrollment was -- I was hoping that I
21 Q oh, there was testimony from Ms. Goddard this 21  could actually enroll her, because open enrollment had
.22 morning that it was reported to her that you were 22 already closed.
23 whooping or spanking children since the last hearing. 23 Q oOkay. So there hasn't been a time where you've
24 Have you spanked any children in your home 24 called up the Lucercs and said, Hey, I need these
25 since the last hearing? 25 insurance cards?
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1 A The first time I asked fc;—t/he Social Security 1 as -- as wall g’gﬁ.stin's own -- her own -- her use of
2 number, yes. I initiated that. When open enrollment 2 drugs and her own attitude and everything. That
3 came up, I text Pemelaland I said — 3 deteriorated, also. ‘Just the whole thing all the way
4 Q That wasn't my question. My question was 4 around.
5 actually regarding, have you ever picked up the phone 5 Q So all of that was linked in —-
6 and, you know, talked to the Luceros about Paisley? 6 A Yes.
7 A No.- - 7 °~ Q okay. All right. And, uhm, now I'm kinda
8 Q okay. So everything prior to the phone call 8 jumping around from what Mr. Gerber, uhm ~-- his time
9 that at least started you guys communicating had ' 9 1line. But -- and then the issue of buying her a bus
10 been -- you were texting? . 10 tj.cket'. So when we were -— you were talking about
11 A Yos. 11 whether or not the, uhm, Luceros enabled Kristin. And
12 Q oOkay. Okay. How often would you text the 12 you -- you spent some time kind of talking about that
13 1dceros? 13 you think so, that she's not getting any consequences
14 A Not often. Because of Pamela's such strong- 14 or anything like that.
15 dislike for me and har hostility towards me, and how 15 Uhm, when you put her -- do you understand the
16 * vary dismissive she is in -- when my presence is 16 circumstances around why she was trying to get out of
17 around, I do not reach out and try to ocall her or talk 17 that house, uhm, when you put her on & bus to go to ‘
18 to her because of the ~- the negative. The response I 18 california?
19 gat back is so nagative and so shut-me-down that I -- 19 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Judge, I am just going to
20 I'm not going to subjact myself ‘to that. It causes 20 interrupt. Can we get names? Because we are talking
21 more problems than it does goed 21  about Paisley, and we are talking about Kristin.
22 Q So did that, uhm, situation start with the 22 THE COURT: Be a little more specific, please,
23 guardianship, or had she tried to reach out with -- to 23 Ms. Amens.
24 you prior, and you had just ignored her? 24 Q BY MS. AMENS: 1I'm sorry.
25 A I've not ignored her. Actually, when she calls 25 So that -- now we're talking about Kristin.
PAGE 299 PAGE 301
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1 or texts, I don't ignore her, 1 Uhm, so, and in fact, when you were talking about, uhm,
2 Q oOkay. 2 oenabling, you Were talking about Kristin, correct?
3 A I do respond. 3 A Yes.
4 Q Okay. So prior. to the guardianship was 4 Q/ So they took action, right -- well, what was
8 there -- 5 your understanding of why Kristin was trying to leave
6 A  Prior to the ~~ 6 the Luceros' home?
7 Q -- was there regular communication? 7 A Kristin came to me and explained to me that she
8 A Prior to the guardianship, our communication 8 wanted to got ocut of Granny's home and go someplace
9 and relationship began dateriorating after the death of 9 where she could get clean and get her life together and
10 my son.’/ And as I was trying to continue to see Paisley 10 get a jcb, and get in a position to where she -- she
11 on a rogular basis. Kristin and I had already agreed 11 could take care of her children.
12 on two days a Waek. And after TJ died, and I was 12 “Q Dpid she say that -- did she say anything in
13 trying to maintain that relationship with Paisley, 13 regards to whether or not she was not allowed to do
14 for whatever -- whatever Kristin was conveying back to 14 what she wanted to at their home?
15 ner, uhm, grandparents, Pamela and Michael, was making 15 A The only thing she said in regards to that
‘46  them feol very disrespected and put down by me. And 16 would bo that she felt that as she tried to parent her ~
17 they really started pushing back and, vhm, interfering 17 children, when it --‘whan what she chose to do as a -~
18 with the days that Kristin and I had, uhm, already 18 parent didn't agree with what Gramnny felt should be
19 prearranged that I could have Paisley in my home. 19 going on is when the contention was therxe. And Kristin
20 And there were times where I would go to pick 20 did not feel that sha was respacted, or that her wishes
21 up Paisley and be told, Oh, well, sha's in town with 21 were respacted as the mother of Paisley. And that when
122 wMichsel, you'll have to get hor later, or we scheduled 22 she said this is how she wanted it to ba with Paislay,
23 a doctor appointment with her this day, and you'll have 23 if that's now how Granny wanted it to ba, then that's
24 to pick her up latex. 4 . not how it was., And Kristin didn't want to continue in
25 And it just -- it just deteriorated from there, 25 that.
) : PAGE 300 . PAGE302 A-A0102
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1 Q Okay. Did yo:u understa;i/that Kristin had a 1 I texé‘né: to maka sure she got on tha train

2 drug problem at that ;time? 2 okay. I text her to make sure that she got on tha bus

3 A I suspascted tl'iat Kristin was using at that 3 okay. I text her to make sure sha arrived to her

4 time. 4 destination okay. And about a week in, she text’me and

5 Q Did you call the Luceros and say, what's going 5 told me she had a job intorviaw, she was really axcited ,

6 on? 6 about it. We were really proud of her.

7 A No, I didn't. 7 Uhm, my husband again encouraged her, you know,

8 Q So you moved -- at that time -- and I know 8 as soon as you find a program and get in to a program,

9 there was some text messages, uhm, between Ms. Ferguson 9 1'm happy to sponsor you. Lat us know. ’
10 and Kristin. 10 She text ma and said, you know, she hadn't

1" Were you all sharing information, you and 11 started work yet, but she naeded help with some
12 ws. Ferguson? 12 groceries. 8o I ordered grocerias on-line and paid for
13 ° A Did I know about the text messages botween 13 thein at this end, rathar than just sending her cash,

14 xristin and Ms. Farguscn prior to talking to Kristin? 14 that she was able to pick up at Walmart there.
15 No, I did not. Kristin was 19 years old. 15 And then the next week, she was on my front
16 Q  uh-huh. 16 door taking Paislay back and handing me back the phone

17 A Iwasttyinqve:ymchtoen;:ouragehe:toban 47 and telling me that she has her own phone, and she was
18 19-year-old mother, an adult, and to make her own 18 back in town, and she was gonna get a job and get her

19 decisions. Because I hadn't known Kristin that long, 19 own place, and sho was ﬁ.m.'
20 and we were still working on establishing a 20 Q Did you have, did you obtain, or did you ask
21 relationship. I was giviag her the benefit of the 21 for any telephone numbers of where she was going and
22 goubt and extending my trust to her, at the sama time 22 who was going to —-
23 as trying to encocurage her to make good choices, make 23 A I have an address.
24 good, hard choices, bacause it's really hard to leave 24 Q -- be there?-
25 your kids. 25 A I havae an addreas.

PAGE 303 . PAGE 305
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1 Q okay. 1 Q Where did she go?

2 A It's really hard to admit that you need help 2 A To Stockton.

3 and that you need scmebody elsae to help you take care 3 Q So it wasn't to Sacramento?

4 of your kids while you go fix some things that you naed 4 A No, it was Btockton.

8 to fix so that you can coma back and take care of your 5 Q It was Stockton. _

6 xids. 6 Did she tell you the facility that she was

7 Q okay. So you're trying to coach her? 7 gonna.go in to? .

8 A Yes, 8 A o

9 Q oOkay. Uhm, and you collectively understand she 9 Q You a'ssumed she was going in to rehab?

10 wants to go to California? 10 A I believed that she —- I baliaved when she told
1" A  Yes. And when she talked to ma about it, I 11 me that shoa was going to gat herself in to a program.
12 asked her, Whare are you going? Who are you staying 12 Q okay. Uhm, she's 19 years o}d, she has a drug
}13 with? And she assured ma, I am going, it's a decent 13 problem, but you just took her, you know -- would you
14 nouse, these are my friends. It's a three bedroom 14 have sent your daughter to somathing like that at 19
15 house, and I have -- will have my rocm. And thay said 18 years old, knowing sha's doing drugs, with only, I have
16 I could come, and it's fine and it's great. 16 her telephone number? Would you have done that?

17 And when she laeft, she left with a phone that 17 A probably, yes.

18 we had baen providing for her for a year, because I 18 Q Okay. You texted her. Did you ever call her?
19 wanted her, as a single mothar, to have a phone and to 19 A Uhm, I think we did talk on the phone a couple
20 be sble to have access to emergency whataver, not just . 20 of times.
21 so that she could get ahold of me. But because she was 21 Q How long was she there?

22 a single mom, I beliaved she neaded a phone if 22 A I can't remezber. Not very long. A couple of
23 thing happ ’ d, so that sha could get help for 23  weeks, mayba. Not vary long at all. I would hav‘e to

24 ERristin -- or for Paislay, or get a ride, whataver. 8o 24 100k at my phone to sae the:dates.
25 she left with that phone. 25 Q Do you think it was more than one week, though?
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1 A Yes. U 1 quardianship, correct?

2 Q At that time, how concerned were you with -- 2 A They have been throughout their entire lives,

3 for Paisley in being ;in Kristin's care? 3 yes. )

4 A  she was in my care at that tima. 4 Q okay. So they have -- have they been around
5 Q Just prior to her leaving, how concerned were 5 Paisley, like when this guardianship had started?

8 you about her being in Kristin's care? 6 A Yes.

7 A I didn't feel that at that time, uhm, Kristin 7 Q  oOkay. Do -- did they attend preschool?

8 posed, like, an imminent risk to Paisley. I was 8 A My daughter home schools. ’ '

9 gotting to sea Paisley a lot, and I was forming more of 9 Q - They're what?

10 a relationship with Kristin. 10 A My daughter homs schools.

11 So, uhm, she and I had had conversations about, 11 Q So they don't go to school?

12 I vas honest with her, if I ever felt that, uhm, 12 A 1. ]

13 paisley was at risk, that I would take the appropriate 13 Q Okay. Did you reach out to the Luceros about
14 steps to make sure that Paisley was somaplace safe. 14 the, uhm, preschool? When you -_— when you got the
15 _And at that tima Kristin had told ma, If I ever 15 question from who -- your attorney, did you reach out
16 use -drugs, I will call you and tell you to come get 16 to the Luceros to work out kind of how -~

17 her. 17 A The Luceros personally?

18" Q Did you believe her? 18 Q Yeah.

19 A 1 did. And she did. 19 A I don't believe 5o, no. I balieve that it was
20 Q How long had she been using drugs before she 20 done through the attorneys. . )
21 was put on a bus to go to California? 21 Q okay. So, uhm, she's attended preschool for
22 A I don't know. 22 the last year, right, until -- so it's be;n a year,
23 Q okay. Uhm, I'm gonna now try and go back. I = |23 correct?
24 wanted to establish the communication. 24 A  she attendad preschool last year until --
25 So in terms of preschool, uhm, was there a 25 Q@ -~ covID?

PAGE 307 PAGE 309
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1 discussion prior to preschobl about putting her in that 1 A  Yes. Yes.

2 you had indicated you didn't think she needed to go' to 2 Q Did she like preschool?

3 preschool? 3 A Did she like preschool? I think most of the

4 A No. I was asl;ed if I was opposed to it, and I 4 time sha liked it. Towards the end there, uhm, she had
8 said I was not. 5 one day with me that completely shocked me, because she
6 Q who were you asked by? 6 just started crying and -- and did not want to go.

7 A I received a message .from Travis saying that 7 Q Did you understand why? Did she --

8 the Luceros wanted to put Paisley in preschool, and was 8 A she just said she wanted to stay home with me.
9 1 ocpposed to that. And I said, No, I was not, but that 9 Q Okay. So othe.r than that, her attendance at
10 1 would like more informatfon, such as what preschool, 10 preschool was good?

11  the days, the hours. 11 A Yeah. VYes.

12 Q So there is -- who's all —- who's all in the 12 Q oOkay. Who -- who did you ask, uhm, for the
13 home? 13 health insurance card? Did you ask the Lucexos to give
14 A  Myself and my husband. 14 you the health insurance card? ’
15 Q oOkay. And there's some grandsons that you take |15 A I did not ask for a health insurance card. I
16 care of? ) 46 asked for Paisley's Social Security numbar so that we
17 A I -- my oldest daughter and my son-in-law and 17 could put her on my husband's insurance.

18 =my grandsons are stayi:ng at our house right now while 18 Q So your husband and Mr., uhm, Lucexo work at
19 they're closing on the:i.: house. But, sure, I take cara 19 €he same place, correct?
20 of my grandkids when my daughter needs ma to, but she 20 A  Now, yes.
21 doesn't work. AaAnd so, uhi, I'm -- my grandchildren are - 21 Q oOkay. Did they have different insurance last
22 very much a part of my weekly lifa. 22 year, or whenever you asked?
23 Q okay. ' 23 A Uhm, the buginning of this year it would have
24 A A1l of my grandchildren are. 24 been Navada. Gold. So I -~ no. )
25 \ 25 Q Okay. Do they -- do you know if health

Q 2and they have been throughout this
' PAGE 308
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1,_ insurance —- you can double cover a child on the same 1 not. ~-
2 health insurance? 2 Q well, so --
3 A I am not sure. I wouldn't ‘know until I tried. 3 A 1 ldon't have Paisley --
4 But I was not able toh' / 4 Q Right.
§ Q But you never asked for the health insurance 5 A -- in my home on a regular basis to initiate
6 card that he had? 6 that on my end. .
-7 "A  No. . '7 Q okay. But -- but would it have been in
8 Q okay. 8 Ppaisley's best interest?
9 A or-- 9 A 7To initiate the sports?
10 Q You just asked for the Social Security card? 10 Q" Yes. ' -
11 A  We asked for tha Social Security caxd. I 1" A EoBa?.hly, yes.
12 believe tha€ their -- therae is an e-mail and a text 12 Q oOkay. 8o even after you started having decent
13 nmessage that's in liem of not (unintelligible) Secial 43 communications, you had not brought up issues like, '
14 Security number. And then we did ask to have the --‘a 14 what can we\é'et her in to?
15 copy of the health insurance card. We ne'vex received a 15 A I hidn't thought -~ I hadn't thought that far
16 response to any of those requests. 16 ahead-yet, and I wasn't aware of when the things [
17 Q You indicated e-mail or text? How did you 17 ata:t{ad and under the enrollment. And the
18 communicate with them? . 18 communication started improving during cov:f;. -
19 "A I have -- I have text messages and e-mails. 19 Everything was still shut down. ‘ .
20 Q oOkay. So when you took Paisley to. 20 Q oOkay. So I'm sure it was the ex parte and,
21 bpr. Hernandez, you paid for that out of your pocket}} 21 uhin, hearing from Dr. -- or Geri Goddard about Paisley
22 A Yes. 22 indicating that you're mean was tough to hear.
23 Q Okay. One of the reasons that you stated that 23 During ‘our ex parte héaring, you did admit to
24 you needed a copy of her birth certificate was to get 24 spanking, uhm -— s
25 her in to extracurricular activities? 25 A Yes.
PAGE 311 ' PAGE313
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1 A Yes. 1 Q . -- Paisley. And I'm -- do you spank all of the
2 Q So have you talked to the Luceros about what 2 xids? '
3 you're thinking about in terms of extracurricular 3 A I don't spank any of them.
4 activities? 4 Q oOkay. You have a 3panking spoon?
5 A Not yet, no. 5 A I had a spanking spoon.
6 Q what are you thinking about? 6 Q So what have you done w:lr..h the spanking spoon?
7 A Uhn, conai&ozed some sports. They have soccer. 7 A I don't use it for apnnk:l.x‘xg. .It's_ a wooden
8 fThey have T-ball. There is, uhm -- there was tumbling 8 spoon that you use for stirring soups and pastas and h
9 at T0C in Spring Creek. Howaver, all of thése things * 9 sauces. So it got put back with the rest of the
10 a:e. protty much on hold aince COVID, so... 10 cooking utensils. -
1 Q Correct. Yes. The world has changed. 1" Q oOkay. But prior to the ex I;artge, you were
12 Uhm, your grandsons, do they participate -- 12 spanking the children?
13 A  Yeah. ’ . ) 13 A I have spanked in the past on occasion.,
14 Q -~ in the extracurricular activities? 14 Q And that includes the other boys?
15 What do they do? 15 A No, I haven't had an occasion to spank them,
16 A My eight-~year-old grandson was go.i;ng to play 16 because they're not with ma that often. They are w_:i.th
17 football this year but just found out that it just got 17  thoir parents. So I get to be their grandparent. !
18 cancelled. My five-year-old and : 18 Q -O%cay. They live with their parents at your --
19 th:ee-anﬂ-a-luﬂ:—-yeu-;old are -- I think they're gonna 19 A  As of June, the middla of June of this year.
20 gat to do soccer, maybe, if it's not cancelled. My 20 Prior to that, they lived in thair own homa with their
21 ., threa-year-old -- my other granddaughtér who is three 21 parents.
22 is possibly going to be doing soccex, as well. 22 Q Okay. So how often -~ I mean, has that been
23 Q Aand you haven't talked about any of those 23 the change that most recently happened, is that your
24 possib:].lities with the Luceros? 24 grandsons are now over at the house more oftep?
25 A  Given tho etatus quo as it is now, no, I have 25 A ' I'm not undezotanding --
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1 Q All right. How often would Paisley and your 1 grandson, what Would you have done?

2 grandsons play togetk;er over the last two years? 2 A Wa would have found gut what precip:l.ta.'eed the

3 A Uhm, maybe a couple of times a week. 3 whole thing, both children would have bhesen spoken to.

4 Q okay. And wéuld that occur at your housa? 4 Thera most likely would have been a timeout, or there

5 A Somatimes my house, scmetimes their house. 5 would have been a discussion about how it's not nice, -

6 Q okxay. Uhm, you don't work, correct? 6 it's not kind.

7 A Correct. 7 They would havae been required to apologize to

8 Q Uhm, and your -- your daughter doesn't work? 8 oach othar, whoaver was the perpetrator would

9 A Correct. 9 apologize. The othar person is then, uhm -~ they
10 Q Do -- does sometimes Paisley go over there and [\10 eithor accept the apology or say they -~ they forgive.
11 is cared for by your daughter? I mean, is that a 11 and if they perpetrated something, also, then they
12 typical arrangement? 12 apologize. And that person accepts or forgives the
13 A Sure. If I want to go on a date with my 13 spology. And then they go back and play.

44 tnusband, or I occasionally have cleaned a house. Or if 14 Q On the day that, uhm, Paisley was returned to
15 1 just want to run to town and shop without all the 15 the Luceros with a bruise, you had told Pammy that it
16 xids in town, sura, we trada off like that. 16 had been a really bad day. .
17 Q You occa'sionally clean houses. 1It's a 17 So what happened that day?
18 housecleaning business that you have or -- 18 A I didn.x't. tell her that it had been a really bad
19 A I have cleaned houses for pay for a few people, 19 day. '
20 but I don't even consider it a business. 20 Q what did you tell her?
21 Q so it sounded like from Ms. Goddard that she 21 A I said -- I said Painley f£ell this week and has
22 t'hought that the -- the kids all together were pretty 22 a bgmise on her bottom, and that she did also get a
23 comfortable with each othexr? 23 spanking this week, that it had been a bad afternoon.
24 A They're very comfortable with each other. 24 Q So what happened when she got a spanking?
25 Q oOkxay. And Braxton is how old? 25 A she was asked to come inside. RAnd, ubm, she

PAGE 315 PAGE 317
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1 A Eight. 1 and her other cousin Emary were asked to go.in to

2 Q Uhm, do you see, uhm, conflict between them 2 raisley's bedroom and pick up the toys that they had

3 and -~ 3 been playing with so they could go down for a nap.

4 A I doi't see any conflict between Braxton and 4 vhen Emery entered the room to help Paisley, Paisley

5 Paisley that I don't also sea botween Braxton and his 5 started sczeamix':g at her, No, I don‘é want your help,

6 brother Bryson, and Braxton and his brother Brennan, 6 No, I don't want your help, get out. And qut

7 and Braxton and his other cousin Emery, the same 7 - screaming and yelling at her.

8 conflict that I see botween Emery and Paisley on 8 So I said, Okay, Emery, get out, Pnislég wants
.9  occasion and Bremnnan and Bryson ox any of them, becausa 9 todo it by herself. When I did that, Paisloy started
10 they are eight, five, four, three-and-arhalf, and 10 screaming, No, I don't want to. I'm not gonna do it.
11  three. And they're all learning how to acoperata and 11 And I went in the room and I said, You said you wanted
12 share and play nice. And scmatimes thdy don't like 12 to do it by yourself, you're going to do it by yourself
13 each other, and gometimas they do. 13 now. You need to pick up your toys, and then you can
14 Q okay. Unhm, you heard what Paisley disclosed to 14 take a nap. And that's when she just kepe.telling me,
15 Ms. Goddard in regards to she got in trouble for -- 15 ro, ‘and threw harself down and refused to got up and
16 because she was hit in the face, uhm, she hit one of 16 refused to pick up any toys, and kept telling me, no,
17 your grandsons. And'I don't know if it's Braxton. 47 that she wasn't going to do it.

18 So, uhm, did you hear that? 18 And she was told at least three times that she

19 A Yes, I heard that testimony from Ms. Goddaxd. ) 19 needad to do what she was told to do, and she neaded to *

20 Q okay. Uhm, did you observe that? 20 be obedient and to not be telling me no and screaming

21 A No. 21  at me like that, or she was going to get a spanking.

22 Q Did Paisley get in trouble for hitting your 22 sho endad up getting a spanking.

23 grandson? 23 - @ How many times have you spanked her?

24 A No. 24 A ' I don't know. Not that many. I don't —— I

25 Q okay. Uhm, if she would have hit your 25 don't like to spank them. I don't == I try very hard
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defiant as any cﬁ{xd at that developmental age.

1 to radiract or give them a timeocut, or help them to 1
2 understand., I -- 2 Q so when, uhm, she made the comment to you that
3 . Q Are you aware that she has talked about the 3 Granny says if you're mean to me, she'll tell Ms. Geri,
4 spanking spoon to Ms.: Goddard multiple times, that it's 4 by that time were you already -- had you -~ had you
8 1in her -- that it's in Ms. Goddard's first report? 5 angaged with Ms. Goc!dard?
6 A I am now. 6 A Yes.
7 Q Pardon me? - 7 Q And Paisley was aware that you had engaged?
8 A I an now. 8 A I think so. ‘ i
9 Q oOkay. Are you aware of the reasons that, uhm, 9 Q Dpid you -- how many times did you engage
10 the Luceros were reaching out for counseling services? 10 without Paisley being involved?
1 A No, I'mnot. ' 1 A Wa — we had a FaceTima call that Paislay --
12 Q Were you aware of the issues that, uhm, were 12 the initial FaceTime call for an hour. And then I
13 . occurring in exchanges? ’ 13  think she had asked that, uhm, I FaceTime her tha next
14 A I only recently hoard about the issues, like, 14 tima that I picked Paislay up so that -- and tell
45 ulm, after having recaived Ms. Goddard's first - |18 rpaislay, Oh, look, thex%e's somebody that wants to talk
168 assessment. v 16 to you, so Paisley could see that I xihow who Geri was
17 Q oOkay. Uhm, so you were not aware that exchange |17 and that wa m.-- so maybe just the once Paisley
18 day was incredibly hard on -- on Paisley? 18 xnew, was involved. : ,
19 A I have only baen told about it one time. 19 Q Are you -- just-so I understand, you -~ after
20 Q Okay. Uhm, was exchange day, uhm, hard on 20 the first time -- X
21 rpaisley going back to the Luceros? Did you notice 21 A Aftor the first time that I FaceTimed with
22 any -- 22 Ma. Goddard was our -- her and my initial visit,
23 A I don't think that they'ra —- sha has had 23 Ppaisley was not aware of it at that time. Ms. Goddard
24 occasion when leaving my housa,-either on the exchange 24 Aaakad that -- I didn't have Paisley that week.
25 day or even tho day before. I think that the back and 25 Ms. Goddard asked that when I pick har up, this is how
PAGE 319 PAGE 321
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1 ‘fozth has been enough that Paisley has har body -- sha 1 &he would like to do it so that Paislay knew that we
2 has kind of developed an internal rhythm, so she”can 2 were friends, Ms. Goddard and I were friends, that we
3  kind of toll about when the end of the waek is coming 3 talk, that we'ro in commnicatien.
4 up and sha's going to ba going back. Theore's sometimes ‘4 Q Were you aware that -- that there was efforts
§ a noticesble negative difference in behavior. § underway to find a counselor for Paisley because of
6 But she has in the past, to me, wa have -- we 6 exc}_:anga issues? When did you become aware of that?
7 go back to Granny's tomorrow after nap. And she's, But 7 A I -~ I vaguely remember being asked if I would
8 I don't want to. I want to stay with you. 8he'll ury 8 ne opposed to Paisley, uhm, getting counseling through
9 & little bit. I tell har, yoﬁ know, I'm sorzry, but we 9 all of this, after tha initial, uhm -~ the initial |
10 both love you, and-’my turn is gonna be over and it's 10 joint guardianship was determined. And I said, No, I'm
11 Granny's turn.' 11 not opposed to it.
12 8o I do everything possibla to not make it 12 And that was the last that I heard about it
13 horrible or traumatic, My -- my own -- I'm not angry 13 until I got the text maessage from ?amela saying that
14 abc;ul: it, I, uhm -- if I'm sad about it, I'm not going ' 14 Paisley had an appointment in Reno. That was the very
15 ¢to cry or put that out in front of Paislay, becausa I 15 1ast thing I heatc; about counseling for Paisley unt.il I
16 don't want her to feol :93ponsible for mo, if I'm sad ' 16 got that text message from Pamela. '
17 about it, because it's not her fault. It's the way it 17 ' And then I' got that text massage £rom Pamela,
18 is. She -- we have == we both love her, and wa both 18 heard nothing, even though we requested repeatedly for
19 want her to live with ::s And so becausa of that, we 19 wMs. Goddard's coatact information, until we received -~
20 have to shara. And this is how it is. 20 Q Who did you request that from?
21 So, no, when she leaves my housa, it isn't ) 21 A Mr. Gerber sent an e-mail to your office
22 traumatic. Because my-attitude isn't that it's a bad 22 requaesting that information.
23 thing. 23 Q You didn't ask the Luceros? ;
24 Q How deflant is Paisley? 24 . A I asked them when thay told me she had the
25 A On a regular basis, she's not. On occasion, as 25 sppointment in Reno, -wbaé it was for, and who she was
PAGE 320 . PAGE322 A_A0107
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41 ©seeing. And my —- the initial response-that I got to 1 A I believe it was, uhm, in the sp:ing of 2019,

2 that requast was, Never mind, wa will reschedule. 2 Q so, uhm, the beginning -- the spring of 2019.
3 Q oOkay. You said that was like the 10th or the 3 Uhm, did Paisley consider the Lucerocs as her
4 11th, but I didn't catch what month you're talking 4 home?

5 about. 5 MS. RODRIGUBZ: 1I'm going to object. Calls for
6 | A Decezber 9th was when she had -- was, uhm -- it 8 speculation.

7 was December of last year. 7 THE COURT: Sustained.

8 Q 20197 8  Q BY MS. AMENS: Did Paisley ever refer to the
9 A Yas. . 9 Luceros' as_where she -- as her home?
10 Q oOkay. When did you engage with Ms. Goddard? 10 A  sho says Granny's house. I don't know that I
11 A I did not have her contact information until 11 necessarily hear har say, That's my home, or, I'm going
12 after her asseasment in February of 2020. 12 thome. She says she goes back to Granny, ox she goes to
13 Q Okay. Uhm, so in February? 13 Granny's house, just like she says Nammy's house.

14 A Yes. 14 Q oOkay. Early on when Paisley was born, there
15 Q oOkay. So when the -- whan Mr. Gerber asked you 15 was a period of time that -- that paternity had not
16 about, uhm, the, you know, mean, that Paisley has 16 been established. When -- when did that get
17 called you mean, you indicated -- I wrote down February 17 ‘establi;hed, if you recall?
18 through April. 1Is that about the time that you 18 A It got astablished as quickly as possible

19 understood that she was concerned about mean? I'm 19 aftor, uhm, Pamela contacted me and my initial meeting
20 <trying to pin this down. ; 20 with Pamela and Kristin and Paislaey, when sha was ten
21 A I'm not understanding your queation. 21 days o1d.
22 Q oOkay. When was the first time that you heard 22 Q okay. So -- so you have baen involved with
23 Ppaisley say something about you being mean to her? 23 pPaisley that whole time?
24 A I don't know. ) 24 A wo.
25 Q Has she said it before you got involved with 25 Q Okay.
’ PAGE 323 PAGE 325
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1 Ms. Goddard? \ 1 A ot consistently.

2 A I mean, I've heaxd all m.:y grandkids tell me 2 Q when did you start being consistently involved
3 that I'm mean when I'm correcting an ingppropriate 3 in paisley's life? '

4 behavior. 4 A I'm not sure exactly when after that initial --
5 . Q Have you heard your grandkids call their mother 5 initial meeting. I mean, there was a lot of -- there

6 mean? 6 was a lot of stuff going on with TJ at the time, and I
7 A Yas. 7 was trying to manage that, and also trying to get to

8 Q Okay. Uhm, so Paisley has called you mean 8 know Kristin and establish a relationship and have a

9 sipce the guardianship began? 9 regular -- it 'may' have besen =- it may have bsen January
10 A I -- until Ms. Goddard's testimony, I was 10 of 2017 when I made a very intentional, very

11 unaware that Paisley was referring to me regularly as 11 concontrated plan with Kristin, I would like to -see
12 mean. 12 ‘Paislgy raegardless, because it was very sporxadic in the
13. Q oOkay. All right. Until her testimony -- 13 beginning.
14 A VYes. 14 It v;uld be, like, well, you can ses her whan I
15 Q -- either —- 15 work, and I work this day. And then her schedule would
16 A Today. Until her testimony today. 16 changa at the last minute, and things were always
17 Q Okay. ALl right. You had indicated that at 17 getting changed. And I just finally said, You know
18 some point, while you were at Vicky's, Paisley had said 18 what? Can we just please have it carved in stome
19 it's not nice of youfto take me away from grand -- 19 whether you're working or not working? I would like to
20 Granny? 20 have haer on Wednesddys from B:00 to 5:00. And if it's
21 A VYes. 21 okay, I would like to have her on Sundays. And I think
22 Q Or was that at Vicky's, or on the way to 22 Sunday, t‘g: a little while, was half a day, it might
23 vicky's? 23 have been a whole day. )
24 A on the way to Vicky's. 24 Q Okay. How ol;l was Palslay when that started?
25 Q Do you recall when that happened? 25 A ’sha was born in May, so eight, nine months.
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1 Q -okay. And -~ and was it pretty regular? 1 says that. Marri is better:
2 A It took a whi.::l.e for it to get consistent and 2 Q Dpid she tell you that?
3 ragular. ' 3 A Yeas.
4 Q During -- during that period of time when she 4 Q ) Did she tell you --
5 was, uhm, an infant, -toddler, early toddler, did you 5 A Yes. Pammy told me that specifically.
6 have concerns about her weight? 6 Q Before this guardianship?
7 A o, . 7 A Yes.
8 Q Wh;n did you become concerned about her weight? 8 Q. So since this guardianship has been
9 A Uhm, I became concarned about her weight -right 9 established, and you have co-guardianship, you --
10 around the time the gua:dianéhip atarted, because she 10 you ~=- you didn't reach out to kind of coordinate how
11 nad gona, uhm, f£rom, like, 36 pounds in May, when 1" you were going to raise this child at all? .
12 Krigtin came back f£rom California, took -her back, to 40 12_ . A No. It's not met with any type of
13 pounds by, like, September, Deceml:se: that year, and was 13 receptiveness at all.
14 3ust continuing to gain. , ’ 14 Q Have you tried?
15 Q Did you contact the Luceros about your 15 A I bave tried in the past anything --
16 concerns? . . ° 16 Q wait, wait, wait. In the past, during this
17 A I don't know that I contacted them 17 _guardianship, have you tried? ’
18 specifically, but I've not been silent abeut my 18 A During this guardianship, no. HRAnytime I speak
19 concarns. 19 to Ms. Lucaéo, she ig very dismiasive and shuts me
20 Q So you made no effort to kind of see if there 20 down. . .
21 was a way that you guys could coordinate kind of -- 21 Q In fact, the only person that finan)‘: reached
22 A 7o my understanding, from what Pamela has . 22 out and had a telephone call was Ms. Lucero with you,
23 exprgsnad to me, my opinion or perspective, or the way 23 correct? '
24 that I've done things parenting, when those things have 24 A VYes.
25 boeen shared to gmla by Kristin, they've been shared 25 Q That's the.only telephone call that you've ~gét?.
PAGE 327 PAGE 329
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1 in such a way that anything that I say regarding how to 1 A She has called mo, yes. And I anw;a:ad.
2 potty train or diet is very negatively raceived, if 2 Q oOkay. How does -- how does Paisley compare
3 . raceived at all by Pamela. And most cou;wonly ’ 3 weight wise with your —- with her cousins? )
4 complately rajected or just flat out i.-gno:ed'. 4 A She weighs more than her eight-year-old .cousin.
5 S0, no, I did not make effort, because Pamela 5 Q Okay. Since they've been there, and it sounds
6 has always conveyed to ma that she feels that it -- my 6 1ike they've only been thére full time slncé June, are
7 saying scmathing i3 an attack on how she's doing 7 they on the same, kind of, gche.dule. eating scheciule?
8 things, and that I'm putting her down and saying that 8 A Yes. . .
9 ahe's not good enough, rather than'it being, I'm 9 Q Okay. " When you went through a t:ypi.cal day, -you
| 10 concerned. 10, talked about breakfast, you talked about lunch, you
11 Q So how d;aes she convey that to you? 11  talked about dinner. ~
12 A By telling me I'm -- you're not better than us, 12 A And snacks in .betnaen.
13  and there's nothing wrong with the way I do things 13 Q You didn't talk about those. So what are
14 and -- ) : 14 snacks in between?
15 ’ Q So there is some communication? 15 A Fruits. U}m, amtimes‘ the kids -- 2-bar,
16 A Thero was. . _ 16 granola bars, usually £zu$:t. Occasionally, goldfish
17 Q When did that occur? 17 orackers. ‘
18 A  Bofore -~ there was better communication-before 18 Q Does Paisley get fed the same food --
19 oy son died, as I've allready stated. After he died, 19 A Yes, -she does. . .
20 it -- it deteriorated. 20 Q okay. How often are you weighing her? .
21 Q so -, so -- but somehow you got the impression 21 "A  When the exchanges were week to weak, I would
22 that if you waere telling Kristin, maybe an idea, or 22 weigh her when I picked her up. AaAnd I would waigh her
23 giving her kind of some coaching -- ) 23 tho gay that I d:opped her off.
Q I had Pammy tell me, I'm tired of hearing Maria [-24 Q Have you been charting that?
25 A VYes.
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1 Q You continued to chart it at the one hearing 1 A I think that Paisley has trouble !
2 where we heard about that? 2 discarning telling the truth and bel]ting a lie. .

3 A Yes. 3 Q You heard Ms. Godd,'ud say that at her age, "it's
’ 4 Q oOkay. Do you chart her height? . 4 hard to not be truthful, Do you think that she's being
5 A I have not chartad hor heoight -- well -- wall, 5 truthful when she says there was a spanking spoon? R
6 I have her -- I have a maautgant on .tha wall in my 6 A I know she's baing truthful when she says there

7 house. 7 wasa spanking spoon.
8 Q How often do you 106k at her height? 8 Q ) Do you think she was being truthful when she
9 A Not too very often. A 9 said that she got in trouble for hitting your grandson?
10 Q Okay. Do you talk to her about calories? 10 A I think that she -- no. But I don't think that
11 A No. ) ! 11 &che was lying, per se. I think that she's connected
12 Q So where would she get the word calories? 12 the two, that sho knows she got in trouble and she
13 A | Idon't know. I don'e: talk to -- I just ask 13 xnows that hit scmathing -- a wrong thing. So tha‘t.'
14 her to stand on the scale and stand -- and gat off. 14 it's possible that she did not understand what thd
15 And she tells me, It's my turn. And she tells Emery 15 spank.i.ng was for at -- or that -- I.:nean, that she's
16 it's her turn. And we talk about, you know, that she 16 taking events ond meshed them tecgether, which children
17 dcesn't get a lot of cookias for ks, because ) 17 often do.
18 they're sugary and not good for you, and we.just don't 18 And sha and I actually did have a discussion
19 need a lot of sugary food. A 1'9 aftar the spanking, that her inappropriate behavior,
20 I don't talk to her about, Oh, waell, you can't 20 talking back to Nammy and telling her no, and not ‘doing
21 eat that because you'ra fat, or you're heavy, or you're 21 ’ what she was told, is why she got the spanking and why
22 too big. Just that we need to eat good, healthy food. 22 she was in trouble, and that it wasn't okay. .And then
23 And I try to help her recognize when she's actually 23 I told har that I still loved her very much, and that I '
24 hungry, feeling hungry, as opposed to ea\eing because 24 aqidn't enjoy giving her the spanking.
25 ;he's bored, or sho seos scmebody else eating and -- 25 Q When ‘Ms. Brace was here, I believe she talked
PAGE 331 ' PAGE 333
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1 ' when she's full:; that it's okay for her to be done 1 ab;mt meeting with you one ._time, and with you and your
2 eating, even if there's food on her plata, if she's 2 husband the second time.
3 fu, . 3 A Yes.
4 Q Do any of the boys, have you ever -- do thay 4 Q And that was the first time that your husband
5§ tease her about her v&eight? 5  knew §bout the allegations.
6 A No, they do not. 6 A He came hofte -- he got home from work the first
7 Q oOtherwise, what would happen? 7 time sho came, right as she was leaving.
8 A  They would be scolded and told that it's 8 Q Is that -- that's the £irkt =- the only time
9 inappropriate and. unkind. 9 she met with him,‘ then, the first ti.rﬁe?
10 Q Have they been told that? . 10 A . I mean, she met him hriaf:!.y, bacause he was
1 A That it's inappropriate and unkind to combent 11 coming in. She was introduced to him.
12 :m people's waight? Yes, I have. Bscause they're ~-- 12 Q Okay.
13 when they were yo\m;e:, a yeu ago, two years ago, at 13 A  He was briefly explained what was going on.
14 two and three years old, children are honest. And if 14 She left, he went and took a shower. ' And the second.
15 jthey see somebody bigger, they're going to say 15 time is when she actually interviewed him, °
16 scmething. ] 16 Q You have gotten a call before the, uhm, the
17 But, no, thay have not said that. Thoy have 17 report was made from Ms. Godaard, correct?
18 - not teased Paisley, aver. . 18 . A Yaes. '
19 Q Do you think'Paisley is -- 19 ' Q Uhm, you didn't tell your husband about the --
20 A  1In fact, Paisley came home from the Lucercs one \ 20 A  Honestly, I may have, and he may have
21 week with me and was walking up the stairs jiggling her 21 ,forgotten. I have -- there's lots of things that I've
22 own tummy and telling -- Oh, I'm fat. And Braxton 22 told my husband about and have had written down, and he
23 !x;ard it, and he was very upset. And} ha ‘told her, No, 23 . gets busy and has other things on his mind, and
124 you're not. You don't say that. Don't talk like that. 24 sm{.'.ima ha forgats.
25 Q okay. Do y/ou think Pa-isley is an honest child? . |25 Q Do you remember telling him?
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at the house, &Srrect? 4

1 A I -- I don't necessarily -- I can't imagine 1

2 that T wouldn't have told him. 2 A corzact.

3 Q oOkay. Uhm, do you tell him when you spank the 3 Q You don't have personal knowledge on whether or

4 children? . 4 nqot Paisley has naps, correct?

5 A Yos. 5 A  Correct.

8 Q oOkay. How many times has Kristin come over and 6 Q You don't know if there are a lot of teenagers

7 seen Paisley during this guardianship? 7 over there, correct?

8 A She has nst. No, that's not right. I'm trying 8 A cCorrect.

9 to think. In the beginning, I can't remember, maybe 9 Q You don't know what their routine is?

10 more than twice. I know there was one tims where, uhm, 10 .A Co::éat;.
11 Paisley was with my daughter in town and Kristin needed 11 Q You don't know what they're feeding her?

12 & ride scmewhere, and they -- my daughter picked 12 A I don't.

13 ERristin up and they spent somatime at the park, so that 13 Q oOkay. So you're asking to be Paisley's general
14 Kristin could spend f.z.ms with Paisley. 14 guardian. What is your plan on making sure that she
15 But, uhm, in the last year, I think Kristin has 15 remains involved with her mother? - .

16 contacted me threo times. Ubm, the first times was we 16 A 1£ K::I.su.n -~ Kristin can contact me, and we
17 set up a meeting in town, and my husband and I and N 17 con make arrangements for supervised visitation. Or if
18 Ppaisley drove to town and we waited for 20 minutes, and 18 ~Kristin has a phone, we can make arrangements for

19 Kristin did not Bho!v up. And she had told me where sha 19 supervised visitation, as well as regular phone calls.
20 was staying at the time, so we drove around tha block 20 Q oOkay. What's your plan for, uhm, 'Paisley to
21 two or three times, seeing if we could see her walking 21 remain involved with her grandmother, grandparents,
22 o ma@: us and couldn't see her. And the number that 22 great grandparents?
23 she talled me £rom, when I tried to call it back, was 23 A. Regular visitation.
24 1o longer working. And so we went home. 24 Q wWhat does that look like?
25 Another time she called, probably 7:30 at night 25 A  Whataver is going to woik for all of us.

PAGE 335 PAGE 337
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1 wanting to know if she could come by the house and say 1 Q And how is that going to be determined?

2 good night to Paisley. And wa weren't even home at the 2 A Probably -~ I would think initially by the

3 time, we wera on our way home from church. And so that, 3 courts. :

4 wasn't gonna wo;k out. 4 Q oOkay. You guys have started working with

5 And another time she called wanting to know if 5 Ms. Anderson? .

8 &he could come by and see Paisley, and I was, like, if 6 A VYes.

7 'ycu can get 5; ride hers, and then be here betwcen this 7 Q 1Is that something ‘that you're committed to

8 time f£rame. Sure, that's not a problem. And she never 8 qontinue with?

9 showed up. 9 A Yes.

10 Q Have you followed up with anyone in terms of 10 Q You started working with Ms. Goddard. Is that
11  how Kristin is doing during this guardianship? ~11 something that you're going to continue with?
12 A . There's nobody for me to follow up with. 12 A That is something that I would -- we':l.;l. look in
13 Q Have you asked the Luceros? 13 to. : )
14 A No. 14 Q oOkay. Would you say that Ms. Goddard has

15 Q You haven't -- you haven't asked anybody what's |15 bonded with Paisley? s
16 going on with Kristin? 16 A I would say that she does have a relationship
17 A I havo -- sometimes I'll ask Vicky if she's 17 with Paislaey, yes. :
18 heard anything, or Vié):y may have heard something and 18 MS. AMENS: Okay. I don't have any further
19 she’ll let me know. Or I've had some pecpi;e that I 19 questions.
20 xnow that has said, Oh, I saw Kristin in town, and she 20 THE COURT: Ms. Redriguez?
21 wasn't looking too good. And... 21 MS. RODRIGUEZ: What about Ms. Stone?
22 Q Okay. Mr. Gerber was asking you a bunch of 22 THE COURT:. Pardon me?
23 questions in regards to who was living at the Luceros’' 23 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Kristin.
24 house. It -- it sounds from your testimony that you 24 THE COURT: Oh, Ms. Stone, do you have any
25 don't really have personal knowledge of who is living 25 questions for Ms. McGrew? ’
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1 - MS. STONE: (Unintelligible). : 1 this aftemoon% she got a spanking.
2 THE COURT: Ms. Rodriguez? 2 Q You had that conversationp with Ms. Lucero?
3 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Thank you. 3 A Yes.
4 Judge, we aa!fced previously about reviewing 4 Q (Unintelligible}. Okay. And then thereafter,
5 testimony, if we'ra ;oing to need to. As I was going 5 was t:'ha next contact you had concerning that frlom .
6 through my notes, I note on January 23rd, uhm, the 6 mMs. doddard?'
7 January 23rd hearing, I believe, it was '19, I have 7 A Yes.
8 copious, like, pages and pages of notes. ! 8 Q when you spoke with Ms. Goddard, did you tell
9 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 9 Ms. Goddard that you had talked to Ms. -- Ms. McGrew
10 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Since that's already in the ’ 40 about what had happened that day?
11 record, I would just ask Your Honor to refer back to 1 A I think I told her that I had had that -- that
12 those, so we don't have to do that again. 12 I had told Pamela when I dropped Paisley off.
13 THE COURT: 1I'll look back on my own notes. 13 Q What was the time frame between when you
14 MS. RODRIGUEZ: A ton. . 14 dropped Paisley off and told Ms. McGrew about the
15 THE COURT: I don't have a transczipt, unless 15  incident and then when Ms. Goddard called you?
16 one of the -- 18 A I think she called me on a Saturday.
17 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Correct. 17 \ Q So was it the following Saturday? Thursday, so
18 *  THE COURT: =-- want to pay for it. So all I 18 just two days later? ] ’
19 can do is look back at my own notes. 19 ‘A Yes. ’
20 20 CQ' Okay. Thereafter, you met with the Divisiol'\\
21 21  worker, cérrect? 1
22 i f 22 A Ye_é;
23 23 Q Wexe you honest with that person? J
24 24 A  absolutely.
25 o ] Q Bad Ms. Lucero previously been in your home
PAGE 339 . PAGE 341
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1 CROSS EXAMINATION 1 when you had the fireplace with the hearth?
2 BY MS. RODRIGUEZ: . 2 A Yos. - .
3 Q Ms. McGrew, when {~ I want to first deal with 3 Q How long had that fireplace and hearth been in
4 the whooping issue with Paisley. bid you voluntarily 4 your home?
5 inform the Luceros of the incident that happened at 5 A I believe, like, 2008 or 2009.
"8 your home? 6 Q 1s it an area that is not easily seel; when
7 A Yes, I did. ) 7 you -- when you enter your home?
8 Q was that prior to being‘called by anyone about 8 A oh, no. 1t vas right in the middle of the
9 itz ’ 9 nouse.
10 A Yes. 10 Q Okay. Were you surprised to learn, based upon
1 Q so you informed the Lucero -- okay. Tell us 11 the Diyision worlker's testimony, that Ms. McGrew said
12 what happened. - ’ 12 that wasn't true, that you don't have a fireplace and
13 A twWhen I arrived at Vicky Ferguson's on that 13 hearth in your home? —
14 i't;ursday for tl;a axchange, uhm, I don't -- Pamela was 14 A VYes.
15 not there yet. And I told Vicky, I said, I just wanted 15 Q When you informed Ms. McGrew‘ of what had
18 to et you know, Paisley has a bruise on her bottom i . 16 happened that day,. did she express to you any concerns
17 because she fall on my hearth, and she did get a 17 or any disbelief? .
18 spanking this week. And then I was getting ready to 18 A When I told her about the bruise, she seemed,
19 1leave, and Pamala had.come up, and she was gaetting out 19 1like, okay. And then when I told her about the
20 of the car. And she was talking to Paisley at that \ 20 spanking, her daneanoz changed and she just kinda was
21 point. 21 nonresponsive and closed off. '
22 ‘and I said, I juat -~ I want to lat you know 22 Q So do you Aremember approximately when that was?
23 that Paisley fell down, she has a bruise, a back 23 was that in June of 2020?
24 bruisa, high up on her right buttock, and she did get a 24 A So wa were supposed to get har, she was
25, spanking this week. But we just had a bad afterncon 25 supposaed to ooma back to our honsa,' I beliave, on June |
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1 11ith. 8o it would have besn tHa Thursday before that. 1 a go-between -=

2 Q oOkay. You testified at length with Mr. Gerber 2 A  Right.

3 about who ma; or may‘not be in the Lucero home, about 3 Q -- is it possible for you and Ms. Lucero to

4 the Lucero home, essentially. 4 oven text back and forth such information?

5 What do you base that information on? 5 A I bolieve so, yes.

6 A From what Paisley talks about when sha's with 6 Q Ms. Ferguson testified about a time when you

7 us. T  were sitting in her home during an exchange, and

8 Q So just based upon Palsley's report back to 8 Ms. McGrew came in and said -- refused to speak to you.

9 you? 9 A Yes.

10 A Yeah. ‘10 Q Do you recall when that occurred?

11 Q Have you ever been in the Lucero home? 1 "A  Tho exact dates, mo. It was early om in the
12 . A I have not-been inside of thair homae, no. 12 guardianship. ' :
13 Q so it is possible, is it not, that Paisley 13 Q oOkay. Do you recall the substance of the
14 could be telling you that, Well, when I'm at 14 conversation?

15 Granny's -- does she call Ms. Lucero Granny'é 15 A It was just that Pamela had come in. I think
16 A  she calls her Granny. 16 Kriotin was with her at the time. Paisley had come in.
17 Q Granny -- I don't have to take a nap? 17 = w‘a.a already there, sitting onMs Farguson's

18 A I don't know that sha's told ma that sha M8 loveseat. Uhm, I think Paisley actually had come over
19 doaesn't have to. I think I asked her bafore, Do you 19  and was saying hi to me. And, uhm, Pamela was talking
20 take a nap at Granny's, and she just told me no. 20 to vicky, I think about Carter, and I kind of piped up
21 Q Okay. Have you ever talked to Ms. Lucero or 21 with, Is there anything that X need to know about
22 Mr. Lucero about, like, their structures, what they do 22 Paisley? And I said == I said, Is there anything that \
23 with -- with Paisley so that you can mirrc;r the same in |23 I need to know about Paisley, and I wasn't answered.
24 your home? 24 . And so Vicky asked Pam, She's wondering, you
25 A  When -- at the beginning of, uhm, the 25 xnow, is there anything you need to tell her about
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1 guardianship, Paisley was two, and it was gaetting time 1 Paisley. And Pamela said, I'll tell you, but I'm not

2 to, uhm, potty train. And I had asked -- I had asked 2 gonna tell her.

3 Vicky to please ask Pammy what they were doing at their 3 Q And where was Paisley at?

4 nhouse, as far as potty training Paisley so I could do 4 A She was in the room.

5 the sema thing at my placa so there was consistency to 5 Q Dpid you try to further engagé with Ms. Lucero

6 help Paisley, so that it wouldn't be so hard, aAnd I 8 at that time?
+ T never got a response back. And -- 7 A ac" that tm? '

8 -Q ..Okay. 8 Q Yes.

9 ' A I, uhm, at one time, coming to court here, I 8 A No.

10 had told Michael Lucero in the stairwall, I said, Well, 10 Q why?

11 she's been doing zeaily wall potty training. And when 1" A  Because her respc{nse was so contenticus that I
12 she's at our house, you know, she's wearing panties now 12 di&n"t want to risk an argument or negative bickering’
13 during the day, and she's baen doing graat‘. And he's 13 .back and forth. I don't —— har -- how a.he feals about
14 just like, Oh, yeah, she's fina. B8ha wears panties at 14 e ‘negative, so negatively, it's such a strong feeling,
15 our house all the time, and just dismissed me and 15 and it permeates out from her. And I don't think it's
18 continued talking to my husband. 16 beneficial for Paisley to see Granny have that attitude
17 8o it's == I am very reluctant to try to share 117 towards ma.

18 information because that is the responsa that I get. 18 And I think that it makes it very hard for
19 Q Do you understand how important that is, 19 paisley. Sha loves us both. And hera's this woman
20 though, when Paisley is spending 50 percent of her life |20 that she loves so much, and sho cbviously doesn't like
21 at one home and 50 percent of her life at another home? |21 ' this other woman who Paislay likes and wants to love.
22 Do you understand how important it is to keep pushing 22 aAnd T just think it has a really negative impact on
23 . to try to get that information? 23 paisley to see that kind of animosity and that
24 A I do. 24 bostility. And dismissing amebody; and /being
25 Q Other than using Ms. Ferguson, essentially, as ’ 25 dis:espe'otful, even if it's subtle and it'as not overt,
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1  children still pick up on that. And I just don't think 1 A And uzar:%;e said it in froat of Paisley.

2 that it's benaficial for Paisley to witness that —- 2 Q Has Paisley ever said anything to you like

3  that disraspect. ; 3 that? ) o

4 Q okay. ) -4 A I think that sha's mentioned -about not coming

5 A It doesn't —- it sonds her mixed signals sbout 5 to my house anymore, or -- I know that somatimas -- '

6 how -- how it's Bpp:op':iate to treat me. 6 once or twice she's gaid soﬁathing, but it's just.heen

7 ) Q We've talked a lot about issues with exchanges 7 zeal vagua. And tr.ying to utfdetstand what aha'n.; trying
" 8 with Paisley and her struggling. ) 8 ‘to say -- and thon when I ask har about it, she backs

9 When you have picked Paisley up for the 9 away from it and -- and doesn't want to talk about it..‘ .
10 exchanges, has she presented with swollen eyes, or 10 Andsor just reiterate that we take turns, and you'll

11 bloodshot eyes that would evidence she had been crying? |11 .be back.)You know, this is my turn, and then it will

12 A No. Just the one time when she was really 12 be Granny's turn, and then it will be my turn again.

13 upset, and Kavin told me he had a conversation with 13 Q ' Mrs. Ferguson also testified that Paisley told
14 ther. And she was upset becausa she didn't get to bring 44 " her that Granny said I can't see Nanny, Nammy, anymore,
15 toys she wanted to bring. She was still kinda upset 15 and this was about June or July of this year, before
16 when I got there, and wa talked about that some more. 16 the spanking.

17 Q You and Paisiey talked about her brirnging toys 17 Has Paisley said that t':o you?

18 back and forth? 18 . A No. i

19 A Uh-hun. . 19 Q When the DCFS worker testified yesterday, she
20 Q oOther than that time,’ do’ you recall Paisley —;: 20 ipdicated that you have. a picture of Kristin in

21 "her demeanor being even sad or sullen coming to you? 21 paisley's room. '

22 A No. 22. A I have pictures of Kristin holding Paisley. I
23 Q Has Paisley ever refused to leave the Ferguson " |23 have pictures of TJ.with Paisley. I have bab;; pictures
24 home and come with you? - 24 of Paislay. I just have a collaga of pictures, sevaral
25 A Sometimes she's not ':aacly to leave, because she ‘| 25 .pict:u:x:es. ' ) . ’
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i 1 wants to stay and play. 1 Q Do you t'alk about all of Paisley's family with

2 Q okay. Has she ever refused to leave? .| 2 nex :

3 A Sha's not ever rafused to leave, no. 3 A 8he points out pictures, and she'll tell me who

4 Q Who does she play with? 4 . is in them, or ask me who is in them. '

5 A Carter. 5 .Q Does Paisley have her own room at your home?

6 Q Her brother? 6 A VYes. . )

-7 A - Uh-huh. 7 Q Does she have her own bed?

8 Q And do you allow them to play a little bit 8 A Yes.

9 longer? 9 Q Ms. -- sorry. Ms. Ferguson also testified

10 A ' Somatimes. It just depends on what -- if wa 10 there are times when she comes to your home with Carter
11 need to get home, or get to tha stora, or what we've 11 when he's in her care and and you have Paisley in your
12 got going on. 12 .caré. : A

13 And for a while, my daughter and her daughter 13 A Yes.

14  were living with us, so ;uwould often have my other 14 Q Do you encourage that. relationship between

15 granddaughter with us, who would be waiting in tha car. 15 raisley and Carter? C

16 so... ' 16 A Absolutely. And I have taken Paislay and. my

17 Q Okay. There was testimony today from Ms. -~ 17 other Mu'ghter, Erery, to Vi.nkyss house a faw

48 Ms. Ferguson, excuse me, also about Ms. Lucero saying 18 afternocons, nl;e.n all three of them play togather.

19 that, That's it, we'fe not doing this anymore, we're 19 Q Do you recall what precipitated the change in.
20 going back to court, tet‘arring‘ to Paisley going to your |20 the exchanges, wherein you are no-longer waiting at the
21  nonme. ’ 21 Fe:gu'son home when the Luceros either came to pick up
22 Have you ever heard that? 22 or drop off Paj:s,iey? i
23 A I've only heard that from Vicky telling me that - 23 A Umm, I don't really recall a spacific avent.

24 pamy, Pamela, had said that. ) 24  Just that Pam is —- her hostility towards me, and I

25 Q Has -- 25 just-~- I don't think it's good for Paisley to witness
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o {3 Q "
1 that. And 80 I try to -- and I :e/wl thare were times 1 really know how Yo respond to that.. Bacause I feel
2 where she wc.uld wait out on the street. There was one 2 1like -- I don't knm: I kind of feal lik’o that puts me
3 tize in the last year where she was -- haor car was 3 in a disadvantage, bacause any child is gonna think
4 parked out on the strect, and I was exiting the 4 you're mean if you correct their behavior.
5 FPerguson house to get in my car and back away. And 5 So now if I tell har no, or if I don't let her
6 thay honked at ma, and it made me feel like, you know, 6 have something that she wants, or if I correct an
7 hurry up, we're waiting. And -- ! 7 inapp':cp:iata behavior, she's gonna go back and say,
8 Q who honked at you? 8 _ Nammy was mean.
9 A The Luceros, or whoaver was in the vehicla. 9 Q You also testified that one time Paisley said,
10 And, uham, Vicky had told me at one time that, 10 1It's not nice of you to take me away frcm Granny.
11 uhm, Pamela had told her that I was not allowed to be 1" What was your response to that?
12 there when Pamala was there, and that I wasn't even 12 A I don't even rememher what I responded. I
13 allowed -~ that we weren't allowed to be there at the 13 den't ~- I think that I may have told her that I didn't
14 game time, physically at the same time. 14 take her away from Granny. B .
15 8o I just -- batween Vicky and myself, I 18 Q oOkay. And has Paisley ever discussed with you
16 just -~ on days that I drop Paisley off, I try to get 16 or made mention of Ms. Geri before you had the phone
17 theze anywhere from a quarter till to five till 4:00, 17 call -- '
18 &0 that I can be gone, and Ma. Lucero can pick her up 18 A Nope.
19 at four o'clock, is the agreed upon tima, but not to 19 Q - with)Ms. Goddard?
20 where there's a chance that'thare can be any negativity 20 A  Nope. ’
21 botween tha two of us. 21 Q so Paisley had never brought her up at your
22 Uhm, there was a period -- thare was a while 22 house? .
23 there where I think sha figured out I was coming early, 23 A  Nopa. T
24  and so I noticed.she was getting there at, like, 10 24 Q And Ms. Goddaxd testified that she had '
25 +ill 4:00. And oftentime making me feel like I just 25 testified about some incidents that occurred at your
PAGE 351 PAGE 353 .
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1 -.needad to hurry up and drop Paisley off, 1 son's fuieral, with your behavior and your husband's
2 And then when it's my turn to pick up Paisley, 2 behavior.
3 I either wait until ~- I only live like eight minutes 3 Is” that, in fact, true?
4 away from Vicky, so I wait until, like, 10 till, or a 4 A No.
§ fow minutes till to leave my house. Bocause I figure ] Q Were you surprised to hear that testimony
6 by the time I get there, the kids will ba dropped off, 6 today? . '
7 or I'vo waited for Ms. Ferguson to send me a text and 7 A I was shocked to hear that testimony.
8 1ot me know that thae kids are there. 8 Q Does that cause you concern?
9 Q And are you. willing to continue to do that, to 9 A I don't even know what -- I don't even know
10 provide that -- 10 what to think about it. I don't /aven know why
1 A  I'm willing to pick them up with both of us 11  something like that would be said. That couldn't be
12 baing thore together and actually have a conversation, 12 further £rom the truth if it was on a different planet.
13  and lot her know how the week went with Paisley -- 13 "Q . You testified on direct about the former
14 paisley, and any things that I had noted that I think 14 Exhibit 2 that was previously admitted, well, the
15 are of import or interest. And I'm willing to have 15 Exhibit 2 that was previously admitted.
18 her do the same thing; you know, this is what we did 16 Did you ever speak to -- to \Paisley's
17 this week, and this is how Paisley was, or this is 17 pediatrician about her weight?
18 scmething that I think she's struggling with this week, 18 . A I actually went and saw Dr. Hornandez when I
19 you know. I'm very willing to have that dialegue and 19 was doing those weights. And she was not at that time
20 that .conve:sahion. ‘ 20 -initially concerned with the.weight £luctuations on a
21 Q oOkay. You testified on direct that, uhm, 21 weak-to-wesk, given her age and the back and forth.
22 vpaisley said, Granny said if you're mean to me, she But she did put in her éumntion, ‘her recommendation
23 will tell Ms. Geri. : 23 for dipt was that high density snacks were to ba
24 What was your response to that? limited, that Paisley shouldn't be drinking anything
25 A I didn't really have a rasponse. I didn't 25 other than water. And at that time, two pexcent milk
. PAGE 352 _ PAGE354  A-A0115
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1 when milk was given. 1 Q Durin}tne time that this guardianship has been
2 Q pid you share that information with the 2 in place, even the temporary guardianship, has anyone,
3 Luceros? 3 kKristin, offered to assist with any of Paisley's needs
4 A I think1I dicl.‘ 4 while she's at your home? '

5 Q okay. There was some testimony about Kristin's 5 A No..

8 fitness as a parent at this time, When we were 6 Q Are you and your husband able to meet Paisley's
7 originally in here a year ago, there was a great deal 7 needs on a day-to-day basis without assistance from
8 of testimony about why K}:istin was unfit at that time. 8 . anybody else?

9 What, if anything, have you cbserved from 19 A Yes. )

10 Kristin since the guardianship has been in, or for even 10 Q In fact, you've been doing that on a 50

11 the last six months that would lead you.to believe that 1" percent --

12 Kristin is now a fit parent and able to meet Paisley's 12 A Yes.

13 needs? Excuse me. 13 Q -- status, correct?

14 A 7o tha best of my knowledge, nothing has 14 A Yos.

15 changed. - 15 Q Aand you have in;.'licated today that you're not
16 Q You've indicated that Kristin h'as reached out 16 able to do a joint guardianship, go forward with a
17 o you and/or your husband three separate times to see 17 joint guardianship with the Luceros, correct?

18 or contact Paisiey, correct? 18 "A I don't - I don't believe that it!s beneficial
19 A Yes. 19 for Paislay to be going back and forth on a -
20 Q of thode three times, the first you and your 20 weok-to-weck basis. I think that's asking a lot of

21 husband went to town with Paisley, waited, she didn't 21 adjustments for a four-year-old. I do think that

22 show up. . 22 adjusting to the two different homes is stresaful to
23 pid Kristin ever contact you on that day or 23 her. And it's hard to manage. And I think it's unfaixr
24 around that day to explain to you why she wasn't there 24 to ask her that.

25 at the time that you had agreed to? 25 So, uhm, yes, I am asking that we be general

PAGE 366 ’ , PAGE 357
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1 A No. \ 1 guardians. Am I willing to facilitate visitations' and

2 Q When was the next time after that that you 2 oftan and regular visitations? Absolutely. But I do

3 spoke with Kristin or heard from Kristin? 3 believe that Paisley needs a placa that's har's, you

4 A I don't know. Nonths. 4 know, a place that it's the same all the tima.

5 Q other than the time, the next time when Kristin 5 @ Have you ever denied Kristin visitation with
6 called, you weren't there, and the following time it 6 Paisley?

7 was -- she was -- you offered that she could come to 7 A ro.

8 your house, but she wasn't able to get there, has 8 Q Th‘at time when you weren't home, becaussa you
9 Kristin asked to come and see Paisley other than those 9 were traveling home from church, did Kristin ask if she
10 three separate times? 40 can see her at a different time, if she could see

11 A Not that I can recall. Not at my homa. 11 ratsley? sorry.

12 Q oOkay. Has Kristin called and asked to speak 12 A  As in another day, or later?

13 with Paisley, other than those specific tim;es? And I 13 Q Yes.

14 know those weren't phone call requests, but had 14 A No.

15 requested contact, e:l._thex: by the phone -- 15 Q' Do you recall in January of 2019 testifying
16 A  There might have been a phone call, like, in 16 about Tinkergarten, the Tinkergarten.program?

17  the first yoar maybe whara she called and she did talk 17 A Yes. :

18 ¢ Paisloy on the phona when she was with me. 18 Q What do you recall? What is the Tinkergarten
19 Q Okay. . 19_ program?
20 A  But - 20 A  Tinkergarten, and I don't know if they do it
21 Q So in our -- one of our previous hearings, 21 anymora, especially with COVID, is for ages, I believe,
22 there was testimony about your son's death'benefits, 22 18 months to maybe eight yea::s old.. It's kind of an
23 and Kristin is the payee on those, to the best of your 23 outdoor school. I baliave it kind of f£alls along like
24 knowledge? ' 24 the Montessori styla, where kids explore outside and
25 A Yes. 25 .l'aam about plants ér rocks. And the -- it's not
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1 _ something that they -- like, you don't drop them off 1 A  Not me, Ho. .
2, and go. ‘Tha parent stays there with them ‘and kinda 2 Q Have you run in to each other where you
3 goes through the little course and stuff with them, 3 purposely not engaged?
4 aiso. 4 A I have not =-- I have not run in to them when,
5 Q so is it, like, an active type of preschool? 5§ uhm, I've had Paisley, when we've been out in town.
6 what~-- 6 Not that I can recall.
7 A It's just =~ I think it's, if I could remember, 7 THE COURT: Excuse me. It's five ‘o'clock,
8 it's a six- or twelve-week program, and it's only on 8 Ms. Rodriguez. How much mora do you have?
9 the weeckends. 9 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Like probably three questions.
10. Q Were you ever -~ and I know you testified in 10 THE COURT: Go ahead. _
11 January of 2019 that you wanted to put Paisley —- 11 Q BY MS. RODRIGUEZ: Sorxy. When you get ready
12 paisley in that. Were you ever able‘to follow through 12 to go to sleep at night, what type of routine do you
13 and do that? 13 have with Paisley?
14 A No, I was not. 14 A With Paislay?
15 Q Do you know why? Do you recall why? 15 Q then she's at your home.
16 A I had -~ I don'‘t recall why. I'm not sure if I 16 A I ask her to use the toilet before I have her
47 missed the registration. I'm sure I -- I do feal, 17 put on a pull-up and jammies, and we brush teeth. 6he
18 also, thne. I am -~ I am concerned becausa of Pamela's 18 goes in and she says go;.:d night to my husbard. " And
19 nostility towards me, and because she seems 50 19 ﬂn;n we go back in her room, and she gets in her bed.
20 resistant to things that I suggest or would 1ike to do 20 ~And I read a story. And then we pray.
21 that, uhm, there won't ba follow-through on the weeks 21 Q What -- what --
22 that I don't have Paislay. So that if I enroll her in 22 A ' We have kind of a standard prayer. Uhm, I say
23 winkergarten, they won't take her on the weekends that 23 the "Now I lay you down to sleep” prayer. And then we
24 they have hez, or if I were to enroll her/in a sport 24 thank God for her mommy and for her daddy. And R
25 or -- that they won't take her\ to her practices or the 25 sometimes sha'll remind me he's in heaven. And wa
PAGE 359 PAGE 361
" "
1 functioms. 1 thank God for Nanny and Papa, and Granny and Papa, and
2 - Q  Uh-huh. 2 Nammy and Papa. And sometimes we name specifically the
3 Do you recall Paisley asking -- telling you 3  aunts dnd unclas and cousins. And sometimes we just
4 that you can't steal her, or go steal her from Granny's 4 say, And all the aunts, uncles and cousins, and all the
8§ house? 5 family that loves Paisley so much.
6 A I recall that she said that, yas. 6 Usually if it's the first night that I get her
7 Q What was your response to that when Paisley 7 back, I thank God for watching over her while she was
8 said that? 8 away and bringing her back to us. T try to remember to
9 A I think I told her I don't steal her from 9 thank about the specific day, or somathing specific in
10 Granny's. . 10 éha day, whather it was nice, or we had sunshine, or .
11 Q Do you recall Paisley indicating to you that 11 got to do scmething special.
12 Granny told her you're not allowed to keep Paisley's 12 ) And at the end is always asking that she be
13 school folder? 13 blessed with peaceful restoring sleep and sweet dreams,
14 A Yes. 14 and that she wake up ready to be kind and loving and
15 Q When was that approximately? 15 obedient.
16 A That was after the beginning-of preschool. 16 Q So you do encourage her to express her love for
17 Q Okay. And what was your response? 17 the Luceros, as well?
18 A That I didn't keep the folder, and that we 18 A nbsolutely.
19 share the folder back and forth. 19 Q Also, when we were in court before an exhibit
20 Q Have there been any occasions, uhm, where you 20 was admitted wherein Kristin was reaching out to you
21 have been out in the Elko area and ran in to either the |21 about some concerns for Paisley. It's Exhibit 1 with
22 Fergusons or the Luceros with either you having Paisley |22 the Court. And it's text messages back and forth with
23 or them having the children, where you two have 23 you and she, asking that you protect Paisley.:
24 actually engaged -- where the parties have engaged and 24 Do you recall the time when Kristin was
25 talked? 25 reaching out to you? )
PAGE 360 PAGE352  A.AQ0117
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1 / A I think that I have more than one text message 1 court. \'/ R .
2. and those types of thirigs frem Krigtin over the coursa 2 So, Mr. Gerber, you want to return to the
3 of Paisley's life., And go a specific tima, I'm not.-- 3 alternating weeks, correct?
4 Q Let's just discuss that in general. You 4 MR. GERBER: I'm requesting that we return at
8§ indicated that you've had more than one, uhm, requast 5 least to tine status quo prior to the ex parte motion
8 from Kristin to step in, to help? 6 wuntil we can have an additional time to complete the
7 A Yes. 7 case. )
8 Q Protect Paisley? 8 ’ THE COURT: And that was al_ternatinq weeks,
9 A  Right. ' 9 correct?
10 Q Have you ever reached out to Kristin and said, 10 MR. GERBER: Correct. Unless the Court has
11 can 1 take Paisley to protect her? " ]11 other (unintelligible).
12 A rXo. 12 THE COURT: Ms. Amens?
13 Q Have you ever reached out to Kristin and said, 13 MS. AMENS: Your Honor, we would request -that
14 can I remove Paisley becauseé I don't think she's safe 14 wa.keep it the way it is now. There's been some
15 with the Luceros? 15 evidence that Paisley is doing better, uhm, with it.
16 A No. 16 And there has been a lot of discussion of how difficult
17 Q Have you ever told Kristin, uhm, Let me take 47 it has been for her going back and forth every week.
18 paisley because I don't think she's safe with you? 18 THE COURT: Ms. Rodriguez? .
19 A No. 19 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Well, Judge, to be perfectly
20 Q So when you have obtained contact -- or custody |20 honest, I'm concerned how that ex parte was' presented
21 of paisley precipitating this guardianship, it was 21 to Your Honor. I am concerned about that, concerned
22 Ktia.n:in reaching out to you? 22 about how we came about being the way we are today.
23 A Yes. 23 The law is 50/50 whenever for parents. We have
24 Q So I, toco, share Ms. Amens' concerns. If the 24 these people sitting in a parental relationship. I do
25 court is going grant this guardianship.to you and your 25 see some concerns with their relationship.
PAGE 363 R PAGE 385
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1 husband, either you and your husband or the Luceros, 1 . ' i)t a minimum, I would ask that it go back to
2 and you guys have such a horrible relationship right 2 the 50/50 with Janell's interaction with them. I have
3 now, how can .we be assured that Paisley's best 3 concerns about alienation based upon the testimony of
4 interests will be met, and you guys will be able to 4 Ms. Goddard alone.
5 communicate and allow that contact? ) 5 THE COURT: .Ms. Stone, what is your feeling?
6 A I can give my word that -~ I mean, Paisley's 6 lLet's get you a-microphone.
7 best interests are what is at my heart. I want her to 7 ) MS. STONE: I just want to know how does any of
8 grow up to be a loving, confident, young lady, who 8 this prove me unfit yet, because this‘is just about a
9 has ~- knowa that she has a heart that's-big enough to 9 bunch of nonsense kinda.
10 encempass all her family and all the people that God is 10 THE COURT: I'm. not making any final decision
11  going to bring in to her life. And I am very willing 11 on that yet. You are still going to have the
12 to, uhm, work towards that goal and to work with 12 opportunity, when we come back, to testify. Or if you
13 pecple, whoaver we need to work with, to help find ways 13 have witnesses that you want to testify, they can,
14  to resolve our differences and our issues. 14 also. '
15 MS. RODRIGUEZ: I have nothing else, Judge. 15 MS. STONE: Okay.
16 Thank you. 16 THE COURT: So this is no final decision, this
17 THE COURT: All right. You may step down. 17 is still just the temporary order.
18 MR. GERBER: Your Honor -- 18 MS. STONE: Okay. i
19 THE COURT: We'll do redirect next time, 19 . THE COURT: So I have competing concerns here
20 wMr. Gerber. 20 that I was jotting down --
21 MR. GERBER: Okay. I just wanted to make sure 21 MS. AMENS: Your Honor?
22 I had the opportunity. 22 THE COURT: Yes.
23 THE COURT: Yeah. 23 MS. AMENS: I don't know that she answered your
24 All right. I want to talk about what we're 24 question, though. I don't think she ‘understood what
25 going to do going forward until we get back in to 25 you were asking her.

PAGE 364

PAGE386 _ A-A(0118

10/18/2021 11:54:54 AM

Page 363 to 366 of 375

46 of 49 sheets



,

)

N .v. | ) w .
1 THE COURT: I'm moving on, Ms. Amens. 1 her presence.
2 I have compet.ing concerns here. There was a 2 You're the only one that has admitted to that,
3 bruise on Paisley. There's been no eviQen{:e that that 3 Ms. McGrew. So no spanking any of these kids.
4 was child abuse. DCFS unsubstantiated the child abuse. 4 ' MS. MCGREW: Yes, ma'am.
5 1 don't always agree with their findings. This time I 5 THE COURT: When Paisley is not around, I don't
6 do. 8 have the jurisdiction to tell you not to spank your
7 There is distress to Paisley with the 7 other grandchildren. But if she's there, you can't.
8 alternating weeks. That ;las the reason I changed this, 8 I'm ordering the McGrews and the Luceros to
9 guardianship arrangement last time. I remember making 9 continue in counseling with Janell Anderson. The four
10 that finding. It was not because of the bruise, it was 10 of you need to work together and-figure o'm: how you're
11 because of the distress to Paisley. ‘41 going to communicate. These two little c.hildren are
12 At the last hearing, I told you all that Geri 12 the most important in this whole situation. And they
113  Goddard seemed aligned with the Luceros. That impacted. 13 are not possessions to own, or to be won, or to lose.
14 ner credibility. I haven't changed my mind about that. . |14 They are human beings. They don't have the emotions to
15 Vicky Ferguson's testimony was very credible, " |15 cope with vwhat's -golng on here.
18 that Paisley suffers no extended distrgss from the 16 Carter seems to be doing okay. It sounds like
17 exchangaes., It's not unusual for children this age to 17 he's kin& of a happy, go-lucky kid. Paisley is
18 not want to go back and forth. I don't ‘want to live in 18 struggling. She's older, and she's struggling. The
19 two different homes. I don't want to move every week 19 adults here need to figure out' how to make this work.
20 to a different house. She's four years old. She can't |20 I don't know yet if this guardianship is going
21 cope with this. But she gets to Vicky's house, she 21 to be permanent. This is still the temporary order.
22 gbes to ghe toy box, and she settles down. . 22 The children's mother has not had an opportunity to
23 Vicky Ferguson is the stabilizing force in this .| 23 prase;xt her case yet. That's going to be the temporary
24 whole thing, and I'm not -- Kristin, you already had 24 order.
25. your chance. And I think you all know that. ‘25 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Judg}e?
. PAGE 367 " PAGE 369
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1 You have a big heart, Ms. Ferguson, to help 1 THE COURT: Yes. ’
2 these children and to help with this situation. 2 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Because of their poor
3 I think the issue for Paisley, the distress, is 3  communication, would you be willing to entertain the
4 1iving in two different homes-and the communication 4 use of E‘amilyﬂiz'ﬁrd? ' Ce
5 issués between her Nammy and her Granny. And so far to 5 THE COURT: Yeah. I was thinking about that.
] me, that appears to be mutual. : 6 But I thini: i want to leave that up to Ms. Anderson,
7 I realize the Luceros haven't had a chance to 7 how she wants Vt:he;n to communicate.

8 put on their case yet, but we dj:d have a hearing weeks 8, So exchanges normally happen on Thursdays after -
9 ago about this bruisg situation and the ex parte order. 9 four o,'clock.- It's Thursday. I don't want to do that
10 I'm concerned about Paisley’s.weight. I was 10 to Péisley today. You know, all the sudden she's going

11 shocked to see that pictu;:e of Paisley and her weight 1 bacic to Nammy's house. .

12 at her young age. That is my overriding concern. 12 So for this week that -- Ms. Ferguson, did yot;

13 There was testimony today that.she gained five pounds 13 nave a suggestion? -

14 in the month she was solely with the Luceros. That has |14 -7 MR. FERGUSON: The .kids are going back --

15 not been impeached. It was not impeached on cross 15 carter is going back to Granny's today.

16 examination. That is the o.\.rerx:iding concern, how much 16 THE COURT: Today?

17 this little girl weighs. 17 MR. FERGUSON: Yes. )

18 So we're going to return to the alt;ernating 18 THE COURT: So next.Thursday, that is 'when the

19  weeks. 19 weekly exchange will start again, when she will go bi;ck

20 Ms. Ferguson, are you still willing to have t_t}e_ 20 to the McGrews' house for their week. )

21 exchanges at your hom.e? 21 I'm also oxdering that none of you digcuss this

22 MR. FERGUSON: Yes, Your Honor. . 22 situation with Paisley. Nobocdy makes remarks about .the

23 THE COURT: Okay. The exchange will take_pla;:e 23 other grandparents to Paisley or in her praseﬁce. She

24 at the Ferguson home. _.Noboay will use any corp‘oral 24 shouldn't even know this is going on. She shouid know

25 punishment on Paisley o:'any other children who are in 25 nothing about court. A four-year-old shouidn't even
PAGE 368 ’ PAGE370 A-A0119.
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1 know what court is. 1 . THE COUR/'L:: You bet. If you want to keep
2 Counsel, do you have your calendars with you? 2 going, yes.
3 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Yes, Your Honor. ., 3 MR. GERBER: And alternatively, if that date
4 THE COURT: Mr. Gerber, you need to prepare 4 does not work out, should we set an alternate date as a
5 that order with the findings that I just made. 5 "backup7
6. MR. GERBER: Yes, Your }ionor. 6 THE COURT: I'm looking at January right now, '
7 THE COURT; All right. What I'm looking at 7 Mr. Gerber. So I'm hoping it will work out.
8 right now to get you back as soon as possible is a 8 MR. GERBER: Okay.
9 second setting. That's the best I can do without going 9 THE COURT: Ms. Amens?
10 out a long ways probably. 10 _MS. AMENS: My problem with being available
11 So what does August 13th or August 25th look 11 _ 1ike that is I live in Austin. That's three hours
42 1ike? Things are stacking up, because I ran a -~ I 12  away. N
13 didn't have as many hearings during Corona Virus. 13 THE COURT: That's true. Okay. I would say,
{14 we're trying to get jury trials going again. So giving.' 14 counsel, if 11:':7 settled by the day before, plan to be
15 you anything other than a second setting is going to be |18 here. And let's just hope one of those -- or that day
16 really tough. 16 works out. Other than that, we may have to move
17 MS. RODRIGUEZ: The 13th is a Thursday, so I 47 someone else's case. And you've had yours moved a few
18 can't. 18 times, so you understand what that feels like. But we
19 i _ THE COURT: Okay. I could put you on =-- I 19 nay have to do that to finish this up. But right now,
20 could do the 12th. That's the first day of a two-day 20 1let's shoot for the 25th.
21 trial. I was hoping maybe it would wrap up. 21 MS. AMENS: Yes, Your Honor.
22 What does the 12th look like? 22 THE COURT: All right. We're in recess until
23 MS. RODRIGUEZ: We have a S¥niannual hearing in |23 then. : \
24 the morning, and I then have a doctor appointment for 24 {Conclusion of recorded proceedings.)
25 nmy kids in Salt Lake. 25 ~-00000--
PAGE 371 PAGE 373
!\ll ~ H\ll
1’ MS. AMENS: I have a trial, alss. So... 1 i
-2 THE COURT: Okay. What's the 25_£h look like? 2
3 MR. GERBER: I'm available on the 25th. 3 :
4 THE COURT: Okay. 4
5 MS. RODRIGUEZ: I can be available. I'm , 5
6 supposed to be at a CLA, but I can cancel it. 6
7 THE COUR;I':( All right. Ms. Amens, can you do 7 !
8 the 25th? 3 8 ! N\
9 MS. AMENS: I've got myself scheduled out, but 9
40 1'11 make myself available. 10
1 THE COURT: Okay. The 25th at nine o'clock. 1 .
12 You are second set, so you're gonna want to keep 12
13 checking with the Court to see what's going on. I'm 13 !
14 .lookfng at the two attorneys that are on that case, 14
15 it's Julie Cavanaugh-Bill and Lisa Mendez, so you might |15
16 be talking to them, leaning on them. They tend to 16
417 settle thing on the courthouse steps. So if you can 17 .
18 get them to settle before then so you know that you're 18
19 going to be coming here, then we can get that done. 19 !
20 I'm setting it for all day. 20 )
21 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Yes. 21
22 MR. GERBER: If we're not able to -- two 22
23 scenarios. It's possible that they may settle early in |23 ~
24 the morning, possibly. Should we be waiting in the 24 .
25 wings \and keep it blocked out? 25
PAGE 372 B \ PAGES74 A :
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